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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 


COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG 


STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 


Plaintiff, 


vs. 


DOUGLAS JAMES WRIGHT, JR., 


Defendant. 


) IN THE COURT OF 
) GENERAL SESSIONS 
) OF THE SEVENTH 
) JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD 
) 2019-GS-42-01451 
) 2019-GS-42-01452 
) 2019-GS-42-01336 
) 2019-GS-42-01337 
) 2019-GS-42-01338 
) 
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September 9, 2019 
Spartanburg, South Carolina 


BEFORE: 


HONORABLE GRACE G. KNIE, Judge. 


A P P E A R A N C E S 


SPENSER H. SMITH, SOLICITOR 
For The State 


JAMES CHEEK, ESQUIRE 
For Defendant 


Julie A. Cendroski, 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA VS. DOUGLAS JAMES WRIGHT, JR. 


--- START OF GROUP QUALIFICATION 


THE COURT: All right. Good morning. I am going 


to at this time do a group qualification. And so I will 


ask -- I may not have enough chairs. Anyone who is 


intending to enter a plea today, if you'll please stand 


if you're in the gallery. If you intend to enter a plea 


today. All right. So we've got five more. Oh, we have 


room, okay. 


If y'all will please come forward and have a seat 


just for qualification over here in our grand jury box. 


Okay. And so we actually have six. Okay. We had one 


person leave, so maybe they were in the wrong room. 


Okay. 


So, good morning. At this time I am going to ask 


our clerk if she will swear you all in. So if you will 


please stand at this time and raise your right hand. 


(All comply.) 


THE CLERK: Do you solemnly swear that the 


testimony you're about to give will be the truth, the 


whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you God? 


(All answer in the affirmative.) 


THE CLERK: Thank you. 


THE COURT: Okay. 


remain standing for me. 


I'm gonna need for you to 


And we have a court reporter 
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here who is taking down everything that we're doing this 


morning, so I am going to first identify who you are, 


then I need to know the name of your lawyer. 


Okay. So, sir, I'll start with you in the back 


corner. If you'll state your full name and the name of 


your attorney. 


DEFENDANT HARGROVE: Thomas Hargrove; James 


Cheek. 


THE COURT: Hargrove? 


DEFENDANT HARGROVE: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: Mr. Cheek, correct? 


DEFENDANT HARGROVE: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: All right. And then you, sir? 


DEFENDANT WADE: Wilkey Wade; Mr. Cheeks, also. 


THE COURT: Okay, Mr. Wade. 


Yes, sir? 


DEFENDANT LITTLETON: Richard Littleton; James 


Cheeks. 


THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Littleton? 


Yes, sir? 


DEFENDANT WRIGHT: Douglas James Wright, Jr.; 


James Cheek. 


THE COURT: Ray is your last name? 


DEFENDANT WRIGHT: James Wright, Jr. 


THE COURT: Wright? 
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DEFENDANT WRIGHT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: Okay, thank you. 


Yes, sir. 


DEFENDANT ELLISON: Perry Ellison; James Hatcher. 


THE COURT: Okay. Is Jimmy in here or is he over 


in the other courtroom? 


MR. CHEEK: Your Honor, I'm gonna stand in for 


him. 


THE COURT: Okay. And your name again? 


DEFENDANT ELLISON: Perry Ellison. 


THE COURT: Mr. Ellison, for qualification only, 


do you agree that Mr. Cheek will be here on your behalf? 


DEFENDANT ELLISON: I ain't speak to him. He 


ain't told me. I haven't spoken to him. 


MR. CHEEK: 


THE COURT: 


Okay. 


Okay. You can, you can have a seat, 


sir. Okay? That's fine. 


All right, yes, sir. 


DEFENDANT YOUNG: 


and Mr. Haley. 


Frederick Young, Your Honor, 


THE COURT: And this is Mr. Haley here? 


MS. CLARK: Judge, I haven't seen Mr. Haley this 


morning. 


THE COURT: Okay. Sir, have a seat then. 


Okay. Yes, sir. 
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DEFENDANT GRAY: Angelo Gray; James Cheek. 


THE COURT: One more time. 


DEFENDANT GRAY: Angelo Gray; James Cheek. 


THE COURT: Gray? 


DEFENDANT GRAY: (Nods head up and down.) 


THE COURT: Okay, thank you. 


DEFENDANT MATHES: Lucas Mathes; James Cheek. 


THE COURT: Mr. Mathes? 


DEFENDANT MATHES: (Nods head up and down.) 


THE COURT: Is that a yes? 


DEFENDANT THOMPSON: Joseph Thompson; James 


Cheek. 


THE COURT: Mr. Thompson, okay. 


Yes, ma'am. 


DEFENDANT PHILLIPS: Kristin Phillips; Dan 


MacDonald. 


THE COURT: Okay. Ma'am, do you agree that Mr. 


Cheek can stand in for qualification only? 


DEFENDANT PHILLIPS: Yes. 


THE COURT: All right, thank you. 


Yes, sir. 


DEFENDANT MORRIS: Jerry Morris; Robert Hall. 


THE COURT: Okay. Do you agree -- is it Morris? 


DEFENDANT MORRIS: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: That Mr. Cheek can stand in for 
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qualification only? 


DEFENDANT MORRIS: Yes, ma' am. 


THE COURT: All right, thank you. 


Yes, sir. 


DEFENDANT PETTY: Sidney Petty; Daniel MacDonald. 


THE COURT: Okay. Do you agree that Mr. Cheek 


can stand in? 


DEFENDANT PETTY: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: Yes, sir. 


DEFENDANT ESTES: Stephen Estes, Zach Farr. 


THE COURT: Mr. Estes? 


DEFENDANT ESTES: Yes. 


THE COURT: Okay. Where is is Zach in the 


other courtroom? Mr. Farr? 


MS. CLARK: Mr. Farr is running late. He was 


gonna be in Cherokee this morning. 


here around 10:30. 


He said he'll be 


THE COURT: Okay. I guess have a seat. Thank 


you. 


Yes, sir. 


DEFENDANT SESSOMS: Ethan Sessoms and John 


Bateman. 


THE COURT: Okay. All right, thank you. Please 


remain standing. 


Yes, sir. 
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DEFENDANT STONEBURNER: Nicholas Stoneburner; 


Charles Snyder. He's standing in for me. 


THE COURT: Okay, Mr. Cheek? 


DEFENDANT STONEBURNER: Yes, ma' am. 


THE COURT: Your last name one more time. 


DEFENDANT STONEBURNER: Stoneburner. 


THE COURT: Okay. Is he on your list? 


MS. CLARK: No, ma'am. He must be an add-on. 


THE COURT: Can you spell your last name? 


DEFENDANT STONEBURNER: S-t-o-n-e-b-u-r-n-e-r. 


THE COURT: Okay. And your first name one more 


time. 


DEFENDANT STONEBURNER: Nicholas, 


N-i-c-h-o-1-a-s. 


THE COURT: All right. Thank you. 


Yes, sir. 


DEFENDANT RATCHFORD: Demarkus Ratchford; Jamia 


Foster. 


THE COURT: Okay. And is she -- she stepped out? 


MR. NEELY: Yes, ma'am. She's right outside the 


door. 


THE COURT: Okay. And have you -- you're not a 


first sentence, correct? No, okay. 


come in, please, for qualification. 


here for qualification, all right? 


Can you ask her to 


Okay. So she's in 
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Yes, ma'am. 


DEFENDANT BABBS: Sherry Babbs, Brendan Delaney. 


THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Babbs, do you agree that 


Mr. Cheek can be here for qualification since they're in 


the same office? 


DEFENDANT BABBS: (Nods head up and down.) 


THE COURT: Okay, thank you. 


All right. At this time I'm gonna go through 


questioning with you except for the folks that are 


seated, okay? We'll wait on your lawyers to get here, 


okay? 


So, rather than have you answer verbally, which 


would be very confusing for the record for the court 


reporter, I want to do the sit/stand option. 


believe you'll understand once we get started. 


right? 


And I 


All 


Does everybody understand that the purpose of you 


being here today is to enter a plea on the charge or 


charges against you? That would be as opposed to having 


a bench trial or a jury trial on those charges? If you 


understand that, I want you to remain standing. 


(All defendants remained standing.) 


Thank you. Now, when you enter a plea you're 


waiving very important constitutional rights. Not only 


are you waiving your right to a trial by jury, but you 
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also waive your right to confront witnesses against you 


and your right to remain silent. You also waive your 


right to present evidence. If you understand that, I 


want you to remain standing. 


(All defendants remained standing.) 


Thank you. Now, if you were to go forward and 


have a trial on the charge or charges against you, the 


burden of proof would not be on you and your lawyer, the 


burden of proof is on the State, on the solicitor to 


prove every element of every charge against you beyond a 


reasonable doubt. You are presumed to be innocent until 


proven guilty. If you understand that I want you to 


remain standing. 


(All defendants remained standing.) 


And if you were to have a jury trial, every 


member of the jury, all 12 would have to agree as to 


your guilt for you to be found guilty. If you 


understand that, I want you to remain standing. 


(All defendants remained standing.) 


And understanding all of these rights as I have 


just stated them to you, if you wish to go forward in 


entering a plea, waiving these very important rights, I 


want you to remain standing for me. 


(All defendants remained standing.) 


Thank you. Now, if you are satisfied with the 
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services of legal counsel and your lawyer, I want you to 


remain standing. 


(All defendants remained standing.) 


Thank you. And please understand that in the 


event you wish to appeal any aspect of your plea hearing 


today, you only have ten days to do so in writing to 


this court. You don't have 15. You don't have 30. 


don't have 60. You have 10 days. If you understand 


that, I want you to remain standing for me. 


(All defendants remained standing.) 


Thank you. Now, if any of the next questions 


You 


apply to you, I want you to have a seat so I can talk to 


you more about it, okay? If anyone feels that they have 


been threatened or coerced in any manner to enter a 


plea, I want you to have a seat at this time. 


(All defendants remained standing.) 


Thank you. And don't be offended, I ask 


everybody the next questions, okay? Are you today under 


the influence of alcohol, drugs, or any intoxicant that 


might impair your judgment in understanding what we're 


doing today? 


seat. 


If that applies to you, please have a 


(All defendants remained standing.) 


Thank you. And, if anyone suffers from any 


mental or physical infirmity that would affect your 
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ability in understanding what we're doing today, please 


have a seat. 


(All defendants remained standing.) 


Thank you. And lastly, if you take any type of 


13 


prescribed medication, it might be for diabetes or high 


blood pressure or attention deficit disorder, but if you 


take any type of prescribed medication, I need for you 


to have a seat so that I can get your name and I'll ask 


you more about it during your individual plea, okay? 


All right. So, I' 11 start on my left. Yes, 


ma'am, your name, please. 


DEFENDANT PHILLIPS: Kristin Phillips. 


THE COURT: Ms. Phillips. Okay. I'll ask you 


about it during the plea, okay? 


Yes, sir. 


DEFENDANT SESSOMS: Ethan Sessoms. 


THE COURT: Okay. And, yes, ma'am, Ms. Babbs. 


All right, thank you. 


Thank you all. Those who were out in the 


gallery, you can go back to the gallery at this time. 


Everybody else can be seated, okay? 


END OF GROUP QUALIFICATION 


MR. SMITH: Your Honor, before you is Douglas 


James Wright. 


indictments. 


He's here to plead guilty on a number of 


First is 2019-GS-42-1452. That was a true 
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billed indictment for assault and battery in the first 


degree. He's pleading as charged. 


Next is 2019-GS-42-1336. That is an indictment 


for possession of a weapon by a person convicted of a 


He's pleading as charged. Next is violent felony. 


2019-GS-42-1451. That was a two-count indictment. 


first count is carjacking and the second count is 


possession of a weapon during violent crime. 


pleading guilty to both, as charged. 


He's 


The 


Next is 2019-GS-42-1338. This is a true billed 


14 


indictment for petit larceny. He's pleading as charged. 


And finally, there's 2109-GS-42-1337. That's a 


true billed indictment for burglary in the first degree. 


He's pleading guilty to the lesser included of burglary 


2nd degree violent, and he is pleading to count two as 


charged. 


There's a recommendation in this case of 


concurrent sentencing. He's represented by James Cheek 


with the public defender's office. And I'm handing up 


three pages of Your Honor's plea information sheet. I 


don't have any victims present. 


THE COURT: Were they notified? 


MR. SMITH: They were. 


THE COURT: Is there any restitution? 


MR. SMITH: There is not. And, Your Honor, you 
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handled a co-defendant of his about a month or so ago. 


Jennifer Dillard was her name. 


her. 


Mr. Eppes represented 


THE COURT: All right, sir. You are Douglas 


James Wright; is that correct? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma' am. 


THE COURT: Okay, Mr. Wright. I have several 


indictments that I need to go through with you at this 


time. And, sir, if at any time you need for me to stop 


and you need to talk to your lawyer, 


all right? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: All right. Sir, 


you let me know, 


I have indictment 


2019-GS-42-1451, and I have 2019-GS-42-1451A. And this 


is a two-count indictment. It is a true billed 


indictment for carjacking and possession of a weapon 


during a violent crime. It's my understanding that you 


are pleading as indicted on these charges, and the 


potential penalty for carjacking under South Carolina 


Code Section 16-3-1075(b) (1) is zero to 20 years. 


So first let me ask, sir, do you understand the 


offense that you're entering your plea to under this 


indictment? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: And do you understand the potential 


15 15







1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


16 


penalty as being zero to 20 years? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: And, sir, this is classified as a 


violent and most serious offense. Do you have any 


questions concerning the classification? 


THE DEFENDANT: No, ma'am. 


THE COURT: Have you discussed that with counsel? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: Do you need any further discussions? 


THE DEFENDANT: No, ma'am. 


THE COURT: All right. And then on 2019-1451(a), 


possession of a weapon during a violent crime, sir, the 


sentence on this is a mandatory five years and it is not 


suspendable. Do you understand that? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: So, do you understand the offense 


that you're entering your plea to? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: And the potential penalty? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: Have you discussed with counsel that 


the five years is not suspendable? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma 1 am. 


THE COURT: I have indictment 2019-GS-42-1337, 


which is a true billed indictment for burglary in the 
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first degree as A of the indictment or the first part of 


the indictment. And then A is possession of a weapon 


during a violent crime, which is the second part (sic) 


Sir, do you understand that as to the burglary violent 


second degree, you were originally charged as a burglary 


first; is that correct? 


MR. SMITH: That's correct, Your Honor. 


THE COURT: And you're pleading to the lesser 


included offense of burglary in the second degree 


offense violent. Do you understand that? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: 


15 years? 


The potential penalty being zero to 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: And this is classified as a violent 


and serious offense. Have you had an opportunity to 


discuss that with your lawyer? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: Do you have any questions about that 


for me or for him? 


THE DEFENDANT: No, ma'am. 


THE COURT: Sir, and as 2019-GS-42-1337 (a) is 


possession of a weapon during a violent crime. 


again, sir, that is a mandatory five years 


non-suspendable offense. Do you understand? 


And, 
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma I am. 


THE COURT: Have you had an opportunity to 


discuss that with your lawyer? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: All right. On indictment 


19-GS-42-1452, this is a true billed indictment for 


assault and battery 


pleading ---


in the first degree. And you are 


MR. SMITH: It was actually charged as attempted 


murder and I indicted it for assault and battery first. 


It might say lesser included, but it was charged as an 


attempted murder and I indicted it less because there 


was --


THE COURT: Okay. 


MR. SMITH: -- the circumstances of the case. 


THE COURT: All right. And so, let me ask you, 


sir, do you understand that under indictment 1452 you 


were originally charged with attempted murder? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: And you are entering a plea to 


assault and battery in the first degree? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: The potential penalty is zero to ten 


years, sir. Do you understand that? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 
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THE COURT: Do you have any questions about that 


for me or for Mr. Cheek? 


THE DEFENDANT: No, ma'am. 


THE COURT: We have indictment 19-1336, which is 


a true billed indictment for possession of a firearm or 


ammunition by a person convicted of a violent crime. 


The potential penalty, sir, is zero to five years. Do 


you have any questions with regard to this indictment? 


THE DEFENDANT: No, ma'am. 


THE COURT: Do you understand the potential 


penalty and what you're entering a plea to? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: And I have indictment 19-1338, which 


is a true billed indictment for petit larceny with a 


value of $2,000 or less enhanced, with a potential 


penalty of zero to ten years. Sir, do you understand 


what you're pleading to under this indictment? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: 


penalty? 


Do you understand the potential 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


19 


THE COURT: All right. So, also, there will be a 


no contact provision with any of the victims involved in 


these incidents. Do you understand? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 
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THE COURT: All right. So knowing all of that, 


sir, do you wish to enter your plea at this time? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am, I do. 


THE COURT: The only recommendation by the State 


is concurrent sentencing; is that correct? 


MR. SMITH: Yes , ma ' am. And the reductions. 


There's also something else I put. This is kind of a 


weird crime spree type case, but there was a home 


invasion that he was not charged with because the 


20 


victims didn't want to. That's part of the negotiations 


in this case. He's coming up on a trial docket. The 


State is planning, assuming the plea didn't go forward, 


if it didn't go forward, we'd be indicting him on that 


other home invasion, armed robbery, kidnapping, burg 


first type charges as well. But we're, assuming this 


all goes forward, the State's abandoning that and that 


case is going away. 


THE COURT: 


MR. SMITH: 


all this. 


THE COURT: 


understand that? 


It just hasn't been charged yet. 


Okay. 


But it was investigated as a part of 


All right. Mr. Wright, do you 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma ' am. 


THE COURT: Do you have any questions about that? 


THE DEFENDANT: No, ma'am. 
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THE COURT: All right. And so, sir, again, the 


only recommendation by the State is concurrent 


sentencing. And I'm assuming, of course, you'll get 


credit for the time that you've already been 


incarcerated, which it looks like about a year, okay? 


THE DEFENDANT: That's fine. 


THE COURT: So knowing all of that, Mr. Wright, 


do you wish to enter your plea at this time? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am, I do. 


THE COURT: And how do you plead? 


THE DEFENDANT: I plead guilty on all charges, 


ma'am. 


THE COURT: And, sir, are you doing so freely, 


knowingly, and voluntarily, sir? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: All right, thank you. Please direct 


your attention to Mr. Smith. 


Yes, sir. 


MR. SMITH: Your Honor, all this occurred on 


September 11th of 2018, in the Lyman community in 


21 


Spartanburg County. Police were initially dispatched to 


an attempted carjacking. They're actually getting 


simultaneous 9-1-1 calls from multiple different 


incidents. 


But the carjacking involved Ms. Pace. In this 
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case she was driving down the road. There was a male 


and a female that were standing in the middle of the 


road blocking her way. She says that the -- that she 


slowed down and that Mr. Wright screamed at her, told 


her to stop and to get out of the car. 


He then pulled out a weapon and pointed it at 


22 


her. Dillard, the co-defendant, screamed you don't want 


to do that and also pulled out a gun. She began -- Ms. 


Pace put her car in reverse and began backing up. 


There was actually another car in the opposite 


lane that was witnessing this, calling 9-1-1. The 


witness said that they then saw the man fire two to 


three shots up in the air and then both stash their 


pistols. So that would be the assault and battery 


first, would be for firing the weapon with the present 


ability to do so, and the possession of a weapon during 


a violent crime, and the carjacking. 


Deputies then responded to Holly Circle. And 


this is the -- actually it was a home invasion of 


purported, like, weed dealer apparently owed Mr. Wright 


some amount of drugs. And he and Ms. Dillard went over 


there to settle that score. During the process of doing 


that home invasion, it might be they were let in under 


the guise of buying marijuana, but at some point it 


turns into pistols being drawn and trying to get money 
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from the male occupant of that house. 


A female and her children were actually present 


and they ran out of the house to the next door 


neighbor's. Mr. Wright goes out after them while armed 


with a pistol. And he goes to the next door neighbor's 


house, tries to knock on the door. He says, and told 


investigators, that he was trying to not scare the 


children. I don't think he planned on them being there 


when they went to the weed man's house, but it was 


essentially to apologize. 


He's met in the foyer by Mr. Pierson, who's the 


victim of that case. And he essentially kind of 


23 


verifies the story that Mr. Wright says I just wanted to 


apologize to them, not scare them, but he was armed with 


a pistol. And that's the basis of the burglary 


second-degree charge, the possession of a weapon charge 


that he's pleading guilty to, and possession of a weapon 


by a violent felon. 


They were caught on scene. The petit larceny 


comes from a guy that was letting them stay at their 


place. Mr. Clary stated that he had come back to his 


house and noticed that some of his belongings have been 


taken, including two handguns that were the handguns 


that were used in this case. That's the basis for the 


petit larceny. And they kind of piece it all together. 
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Mr. Clary is out of the scene, as well as all of these 


other victims. 


The talked with Ms. Dillard. She was highly 


under the influence, alcohol, Valium, and I think, 


marijuana, possibly meth. She kind of gives a story 


about how all of these occurred. Mr. Wright also was 


pretty forthcoming with investigators as well about how 


this all went down. 


He, and I don't know if it's because of his 


24 


intoxication. He has kind of a different version of how 


the carjacking went down. He thought that lady was 


reaching for a gun, so he reached for a gun, but I'm 


sure Mr. Cheek will get into all of that. 


He does have a prior record, Your Honor, that I 


will need to go into for the basis of the possession of 


a weapon by a violent felon. And I think Mr. Cheek's 


gonna hand up a copy of his mental health report. He 


was evaluated both for competency to stand and criminal 


responsibility. I don't know if you want to give --


this is the 12-page one, the longer one. 


(Off-the-record discussion occurred between 


counsel.) 


Your Honor, he was diagnosed as having 


anti-social personality disorder, alcohol, Cannibis, 


sedative, hypnotic, and anxiolytic use disorders in a 
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controlled environment. And opioid and stimulant use 


disorders in early remission. The report goes on to say 


that personality disorders or enduring patterns of inner 


experience and behavior that deviates markedly from the 


expectations of the individual's culture and is 


pervasive and inflexible. Antisocial personality 


disorder is further characterized by a pattern of 


disregard for in violation of the rights of others may 


include the following: Failure to conform to social 


norms; deceitfulness; impulsivity; irritability and 


aggressiveness; reckless disregard for the safety of 


self or others and a lack of remorse. And it shows that 


Mr. Wright has displayed a history of conduct disorder 


behaviors as a child and has a documented history of 


engaging in impulsive behaviors, illegal activities, and 


physical altercations. 


I'd like to hand that up. This is Dr. Kelly 


Gother's report from the Department of Mental Health. 


THE COURT: Okay. Is this -- I believe this is 


it. 


MR. SMITH: There's one that's 12 pages and one 


that's 11, but it's largely the same information. One 


is just for competency to stand trial and the other was 


for criminal responsibility, but they read largely the 


same. 
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THE COURT: Okay, thank you. 


MR. SMITH: I do have Ms. Pace, we thought she 


was gonna be here this morning, but she's not here. 


That's the carjacking victim. I do have a letter that 


she wrote to our office I'd like to share at the 


appropriate time and then his prior record. But other 


than that, the State, the State's done, Your Honor. 


THE COURT: Okay. I will allow you to publish 


that correspondence at this time. 


MR. SMITH: Okay. 


THE COURT: Mr. Cheek, have you seen that? 


MR. CHEEK: I have, Your Honor. 


THE COURT: Okay, thank you. 


MR. SMITH: Your Honor, it just says: I have 


always been a kind-hearted person and would help anyone 


in need, if possible. But since this has happened, I'm 


nervous to stop or even slow down for someone in the 


road or alongside of the road. I do not like to even 


drive after dark anymore. But being a single mother 


with a teenager playing sports, I have no choice. I 


have to drive past the sight every day to visit my 


mother and it becomes very tense and nervous sometimes. 


I pray and thank God every day that none of the bullets 


hit me in any kind of way and I'm still alive to see my 


children and grandchildren. I relive the nightmare the 
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both of them caused on occasion. 


That was the carjacking victim. Your Honor, you 


gave Ms. Dillard, I believe, the sentence was 20 years, 


suspended to 10 years with probation to follow on the 


carjacking. 


I have -- when I go over his record, I can hand 


up, it has her record on it as well, if you'd like to 


see it, just for comparison. She was on -- she was 


actively on probation at the time of this. I don't 


think he is. Their records are -- her's is older, his 


is a little bit more serious, I think, but ... 
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THE COURT: Okay. All right. And so, let me ask 


you Mr. Wright, you heard the statements of the 


solicitor with regard to the charges or the incidents 


that led to these charges, sir. Is that what happened? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: 


for the plea. 


I find that there is a factual basis 


Mr. Cheek, did you have an opportunity to review 


the evidence in this case with your client? 


MR. CHEEK: I did, Your Honor. 


THE COURT: I'm happy to hear from you. 


MR. CHEEK: Your Honor, we'd ask the Court to 


consider that Mr. Douglas Wright is entering these pleas 


based upon what he perceived to be his involvement. 
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And, Your Honor, while it was very serious as far as the 


charges and the circumstances concerned, I'd ask the 


Court to please note that we've passed up the 


evaluations that went down by the Department of Mental 


Health. And there's been a separate evaluation done by 


a private company -- doctor. We'd just ask the Court to 


consider that while we don't have a copy of that here 


today, that that does give some hope for the Department 


of Mental Health clinical director and doctors referred 


to in their report, as well as what the private doctor 


reported. 


And Mr. Wright does have some hope of turning 


things around. And it shouldn't take a long time to do 


it, Your Honor, because while he has had some problems 


since he was about 12 years old, and it's documented as 


trauma and the kind of treatment he received, that I 


don't think he ever really isolated himself from the 


people that were influencing him to engage in these 


kinds of behaviors. 


And along the way, Your Honor, he was diagnosed 


with antisocial disorder. We'd ask the Court to 


consider the possibility of him being given a sentence 


similar to the one that the Court imposed upon his 


co-defendant, Ms. Jennifer Dillard, Your Honor, for the 


reason that Ms. Dillard, I think, was about ten years 
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older than he. And he really took a liking to her. And 


wanted to impress and please her. 


the activities they engaged in. 


And the behaviors and 


Your Honor, the psychologists all agree that he 


is someone that does need to be treated on a regular 


basis. He needs to stay consistent with his mental 


health medications that they would be prescribed and had 


been prescribed in the past. I think Remeron and 


Trazodone, those kinds of medications have been 


prescribed to him in the past. 


His father's present in the courtroom, Your 


Honor, and would like to address the Court regarding his 


son, who many times has been at odds with his father. 


And every time he's been at odds with his father, it 


looks like he's got into a world of trouble. But the 


family is still willing to be supportive of him. 


They understand that he will be incarcerated for 


a period of time. They're gonna do all they can in 


order to provide some support with him through that 


process, as well as having a good home for him to come 


back to and to get started out when he gets released 


from the Department of Corrections. 


Mr. Wright's been facing the reality of the 


situation and the possibility of incarceration since all 


this happened, Your Honor. And he's reported that to 
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the people at the Department of Mental Health. And we'd 


just ask the Court to consider that he, at this point, 


does stand some chance of not finding himself homeless 


again and living out in the woods, as he did in the 


past. And when all this was going on, that's exactly 


what he and Ms. Dillard were doing. Staying out in a 


tent sometimes, just being out in the open many times. 


He had made some effort of turning things around 


and reported both to Mental Health, as well as to our 


office that he had just gotten a job offer from one of 


the companies that handled hurricane relief. And really 


been stressing since he's been at the detention facility 


down there working. He's gotten his GED. Got his work 


keys. Participated in the Merge program for mental 


health stability. And has just done a really good job 


of trying to demonstrate he can turn things around and 


get things under control. 


With psychosis and everything else that he's been 


dealing with appears to be drug related, Your Honor. 


And he did start with drugs at a very early age. 


ask the Court to consider all of that as the Court 


fashions its sentence. 


We'd 


And we're particularly concerned because he did 


assert some humanity, some respect for humanity because 


when he really messed up going in that house, the drug 
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dealer's house to get the marijuana and noticed the 


children were in there, which he did not anticipate when 


he went in there, he went to the house next door very 


anxiously to try to apologize and tell the family next 


door and to tell the children he just really regretted 


he put them through all of that but he's been subjected 


to many traumatic occasions and events while he was a 


child. So we'd ask the Court to consider all of that, 


and ask the Court to allow his father to address the 


Court. 


And I know Mrs. Wright has got to say she holds 


the Court in prayers to hope the Court doesn't give him 


any sentence longer than what his co-defendant got, who 


really thought of all this and led him into it. But he 


understands he should have taken his own independent 


thought and judgements, Your Honor. 


THE COURT: Okay. Yes, if his father wants to 


come forward. Yes, sir, good afternoon. 


MR. WRIGHT: 


here like this. 


THE COURT: 


your full name. 


MR. WRIGHT: 


Good afternoon. I hate that we're 


Yes, sir. I need for you to state 


Douglas James Wright. 


THE COURT: Okay. Yes, sir. So you're Douglas 


James Wright, Sr.? 
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MR. WRIGHT: Yes, ma'am. 


THE COURT: And this is Junior? 


MR. WRIGHT: Yes, ma' am. 


THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Go ahead. 


MR. WRIGHT: Since he was about, I'd say, 11 or 


12, his mother's been trying to get him a proper mental 


evaluation, but nobody ever could give him a proper one. 


He stayed at Marshal Pickens for maybe a month and they 


said he was ADHD and bipolar. So he was on medicine for 


a while and he just -- he wouldn't sleep on that 


medicine, so we slowly took him off of it. 


You can see it in his record, he's been in prison 


a couple times. This last time he got out of prison, he 


was not the same person that went in there. I never 


expected to come back here with him on this, but then he 


met this older lady, who got him back on his drugs 


because he was fine until he met her, and got his head 


messed up. 


He had an undiagnosed mental illness and he has a 


drug problem. This all started back last year. And 


then last October my wife had a massive heart attack. 


She's got three stints in her heart. She died five 


times on that table. And if he goes away for a long 


time, she won't handle it and I won't be able to handle 


not having her. 


32







1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


We're both disabled and we need him to come stay 


with us as soon as possible to take care of us because 


the way he's been this time, getting his GED and all 


that in there, that's not the same boy that got in 


trouble a couple years ago. When he come out of prison 


this last time, everybody could see he was changed. I 


really, I considered him a man this last time. And I 


expected good things out of him. 


good heart when his head's clear. 


And I know he's got a 


And if he can get on 


drug rehab and keep his head clear, there ain't no 


telling where he'd be going. 


33 


I know he's got to do some time, but I'm just, 


I'm requesting leniency so he can get out to take care 


of me and his mother as soon as possible because I don't 


know how much longer I'm gonna be able to walk. 


couldn't take him going away for a long time. 


you. 


And she 


Thank 


THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Thank you for being 


here. 


Mr. Cheek, anything else before I hear from Mr. 


Smith, and then I'll hear from Mr. Wright? 


MR. CHEEK: Your Honor, only we'd ask the Court 


to consider some type of suspended sentence with the 


Department of Corrections and the part on home 


detention, so we can give him some stability as soon as 
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possible. 


THE COURT: Thank you. Yes, sir. 


Okay. Mr. Smith? 


MR. SMITH: Your Honor, he has a 2008 malicious 


injury to personal property; 2009, two burglary second 


non-violent's and a forgery; 2010, two petit larcenies, 


a breaking into motor vehicles and a forgery; 2014, 


manufacturing meth, that's the violent charge that's the 


basis for the weapon charge; and 2016, shoplifting and a 


possession of a stolen vehicle. 


I have Ms. Dillard's record. She -- her case was 


conflicted out, but she was willing to testify against 


Mr. Wright. That's why she had Mr. Eppes as her 


attorney. I believe she pled to all of the same charges 


except I didn't -- she did not plead to the possession 


of weapon. She did not plead to the possession of a 


weapon by a violent felon because she doesn't have a 


violent felony. And she did not plead to the burglary 


because she did not go over to that other residence. 


But she pled to carjacking, A&B first, petit larceny. 


THE COURT: Okay, thank you. 


All right. Mr. Wright, sir, is there anything 


that you'd like to tell me? 


THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 


way everything went down that day. 


I apologize for the 


It wasn't my 
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intention for anything like that to happen that day. 


The only time I've been in here, that's all I could 


think about. 


passion. 


I regret that. I regret that with a 


But it's like Mr. Cheek said, I had just gotten 


me a job that day. I went to the probation office 


because I was on furlough at that time to make sure I 


could take the job because it was gonna be a lot of 


out-of-town work. I felt happy that I finally had me a 


35 


job. I did something I shouldn't do. 


me some liquor. She was on Valium. 


I went and bought 


It was prescribed 


to her. I just -- it got out of hand. 


I'm really sorry for what happened. I'm really 


sorry that I let my mom and daddy down. I'm trying to 


do everything I could to better myself since I've been 


in here. Like Mr. Cheek said, I've got my work keys. 


I've gotten my GED. I've graduated of Merge group 


counseling. I've graduated Merge 101. I've been going 


to AA classes. I've been going to NA classes. I've 


just been trying to do everything I can. I've even been 


tutoring some guys in the pod to try to help them get 


their GED's. 


I've been doing everything I can to, to try to 


better myself. I know I messed up. And like my dad 


said, I know I've got to do a little bit of time, but 
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please show me a little bit of leniency so I can help my 


mother and father because they really ain't got nobody 


else to help them. 


THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, sir. Okay. With 


regard to the matter of the State versus Douglas James 


Wright, Jr. and indictment number 2019-GS-42-1451, this 


is the carjacking and possession of a weapon during a 


violent crime, but this is 1451, the carjacking, it 


would be the order of the Court that defendant be 


committed to the State Department of Corrections for 20 


years. That will be suspended upon the service of 10 


years, and then probation after that for two years. 


Special conditions are that there will be no 


contact with the victims and that the defendant will 


comply with his mental health treatment. 


credit for 364 days. 


He'll be given 


And concurrent sentences as to indictment 


19-GS-42-1337. This would be the burglary second-degree 


violent. The defendant shall be committed to the State 


Department of Corrections for 15 years. That will be 


suspended upon the service of 10 years and probation for 


two years. The same conditions of probation will apply. 


With regard to indictments 2019-1338 and 1452, 


petit or simple larceny with the value of $2,000 or less 


enhanced and assault and battery in the first degree, it 
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is the order of the Court that the defendant be 


committed to the State Department of Corrections for ten 


years. Again, these are concurrent with his other 


sentences. 


And with regard to indictment 19-1451(a), 


19-1337 (a), and 19-1336, the defendant shall be 


committed to the State Department of corrections for 


five years. Again, those are concurrent and he will get 


credit for 364 days. Good luck to you, sir. 


MR. CHEEK: 


MR. SMITH: 


Thank you, Your Honor. 


Thank you, Your Honor. 


(Hearing concluded at 3:32 p.m.) 


--- THIS ENDS REQUESTED TRANSCRIPT ---
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s. 


1ei1tm~r,A.~~~:.,J't-'/ _ l'J'Hf/,6 l,ll~c.fll)'_,D ,4,;u,,,,-1",/1 (:dlR/$1J flh~-
(a) 1/'tl (f').o 3 lf4"1,. - ~ ,I' !P'Merl 0 ,... ,,,~,.,,,,..,., ,-,- ~ 


(b) -;/%/[!J:a~~~~e~ 
(c) 1Lli1l!ltlft%:s~l{.: i/1/C'PJ'it:fN-CtUW u, ~ 1.lir~l>'/-61,lf,, ~ '/ii_ _ v• ~ n ~ 
The dntc upon which sentence WIIS 1m se and the tcm1s of the sentence_;.~:;:: ~ "Tf ( -a9-/9 ~ /11 )filP.$' /1.W ~l(,fll/SVC z: ~~ c, -


a) JI'! - r ~ P"' tf#,ltlf/lllH'1 "< ~~ o r ' 
(b) I -1f-1,.,... ~ ,._, ~ ~;;,,-., m 


-f"t!f"lf. ~ j/;f,(J ~t~ Qr.,8 ,... 
lf--f.;/9 - ,f j!Ml,f f: fl"'tvN-6,1,,'/' ~ f!~••¾ooC, 
1--'l-ff r#J' ,£1/P If>"~ ~'-I en 
f--f-1'/ vJtJMI fl<IP ~ 
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6. 


7. 


8. 


(o) 


Cbcck whother a tiJidlng 0£ guilty w1111 lllflda: 


(a) aftera pica ofgllllty 2(_ 
(b) aftcrapleaofnotguilty _ 


(o) after a plea of nolo contendere _ 


Did Y.OU appeal from the Judgment of conviction or the imposition of sentence? 
.ll . 
Jfyou 11:1swe:cd "ye1",to (7), list: • - . 
(a) tho name ofeach Court to which.you applatco:" - - -- -
i. JI/I 
ii. 


ill. 


(b) the result in each sud\ Court to which you appealed: 
I, 


7/11 
VI 
;\? 


II, ~p - ~~,,, 
iii. 


;a-- :u - ~I.>:,,: ,.co 
(11) the date of c110h such result: I :---:o~ . oG'IO 


~oO 
!. 


ffi g~ 
ii. 


-~ . 
~ 


m. -


~ 
"" C: er:, -C) 


~ 
'?. -G' 


(d) ifknown, citations of 11ny written opinion or orden entered pursuant to aueh 


• rcsulta: > • • • T 


i. 


Pk Ii, 


ill. 


!I. If you ansv,,:~d "no" bl (J), state your r:easons for not ao appealing: 
(a) .l!t..d/{~,}' fll'R/ 7»,f'IH-f If,'~ 
(b) 


(o) 


• 


10. State concisoly the groundl on whieh you base your allegation that you are being held in 


'Tl . - \ • ' . 
m 
0 


custody unlawfully: J:,(IHl'H/'M l!Jf.1":f'TIJ,lf$ t:ok>'f51. 1 .:$ Pf,U/f lfY /t(d/,JZ. 
pm;l,IJM 111' 11 AV,?~✓ 1'#P v'IIN ~ '71/8 /1/1Pl4Vd.f PP ,Ill ~/Ill' 


}/d"tp.lJI" 'T//f A!IIP ~ P~ TII ll@tl!FPT .J¢,.1 ..9~cdg P.P 
I/~ .PJP ~~#Hfriv P# Jty Ci!IP,,_/,i>Plt.l!f l}ft. "illt t'l/~f $/M 
~#£, 


• 
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11. 


12. 


, I .. , 


eo,., pffel,0/JV/'- tmP l!Pr7/f ~/ly ~Nib, 7)a 11> //lil, 
(a) - ! 
Cb> fl/NF~ ~.,fUi!; "7 ~uldJ:t.,, 11,mt 7-7'JNP 7P H./HlfJ' AY 
(c) '!!'!'Jf%;~pv:fl!Jf jz.ffl}J!rJ;f ~ ~ v,,,?f ~llfl£ 
State oon11i~ly and in the Ame order tbs .f11Cts which support each of the groundll set out 


In (tOJ: SU 11/£ 1/!'##v ~.f~ ?# Jld'HYJ~ R,Y /l?/4W#, 
(a) 
(b) µ; :n,,#/'~p;' J)' //ff~, . 


'c) • • "\ ~ \: ~- 'T"' - .. ~ 
Prlor to this application have you filed with respect to this co11vict!on:-


(a) any petitlon ln a Stat1:1 Court under South Carolina Law?~ 


(b) any petition in Slllte or Federal Courts lbr habeH corpus or post--eonvicdons 


relief? .JdZ... 


.. 


( o) any petition in the United States Suprcm~ Comt for certiorari other than petition,, 


if nny, al1-eady specified i11 (8)? ..I!£.. ' 
(d) llllY other petltlo.ns, motions or applicatiol'lS in this or any other Court?~ 


13. If you answered "yes" to &Ti part of (12), llst with respect to each petition, motion or 


application; 


(a) the specific na!lll't thcl\lof: 


1 • ....dJ 
ii. 


Iii. 


Iv. 


(b) 


i. 
ii, 


"I 11 • 


iv. 


-• 
:;;;;c and loeation of the Court ill whi~1 each was filed: 


(c} the disposition thereof: 


i. .R/4 .. 
11, 


Iii. 


rn 


in :..~s 
~ .c; :l; 
;:ii§~ 
~88 
!i~ 
~ 


~ ~ -""' 'ii ~ ·-C r-- rn ::i.: 


0 ;;, -en 
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iY, 
(d) 


i. 


-
th, chlte of each such disposition; 


Pit 


' 


!i. 


iii. 


Iv. 


{e) [fknown, citations olJny written opinions or orders entered pursuant lo caeh such 


i, 


II. 


Iii. 


iv. 


disposition: 


4J 
' ·- - • 


14, Hu any ground set fol'th in (10) been prcviouslypre.,enled tq lli.la or 11nyother Court, 


State or .Federal; In any petition, motion or appli~llon which )'OU have filed? 


.../:!IZ. 
15. If you answered ''yea" to (14) identify: (h ia (a) which grounds have been pn:sentcd: ,.,~. = 


I. ..RI, • .0 § 
..:i GJ :,; -II. ;:ec: 0 Q • ;o .,, 


iii. 81,)8 Se x8c:: § 
(b) the proceedings In which each grolmd Willi raised: ~?:l 


.Pit. - ..... ,I • =< en • I. • . . • • 


ii. 


!ii. 


16. lfany ground set forth in (I 0) has not previously been presented to any Court, State or 
• 


Pedcral, set f'orth the ground 1111d state concisely the rcesons why such grou11d has not 


previously been preao11ted: 


(a) ....litt!,;v6 /, C ,t! ,bPtv­


Cb) 


(c) . 
17, Were you represc:nted by anllttomcy at anytime during the course of 


4 
R~vlsed 3/2003 


i1 -r-
m 
0 
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18, 


l 9. 


20. 


• 


(8) your 11rr11lgnrncnt and ploa? Pff 
(b) your 111111, If eny'I _ 


(o) y0\11' s!ntcncing7 ..j.i._ 
( d) your appeal, if uny, !tom the Judgment of t;OnYictlon or the Imposition of 


sen tence7 ...J:!'i!.. 
• 


(e) prepllrntion, presentation or consf dllffllion of eny pcttlions, motioM or appllcatlons 
• wltb respect to this co1,ictlon, which you filed? _ 


If you answered ''yes" lo t>nc or mo{e pa;ts of(l'1), list! 
i ·, 


(a) the name and addrells of each attomcy who repl'CS<lllted you: 


i. _J};gt. Jt, pf&ty / f!A/lW!fOWZIJ, J/,f/Jta /JV#IJIQ/.. 
ii. 


iii. -
{b) lhe proceedings at which each such attorney represented you: 
i, -,911,-
ii. -
iii. -


i 
State clearly tho relief you seek In filing this application: 
- t/1/el'i"ti e1tdlly /J(,61,-


' Arc you. now under se11te11oe from 11/l)' other Court thllt you have not challenged? 


~ 
... ... 


c,, 
~ ~ -:\:! fJ .... 


2!i~ t -ri 
~cr,X -~c:o - r • ;;a .,, 0 


~8§ ,._ fi'I :;z: 


'?. 0 
~::I -°' 


.... 
RJovbed lllOOl 


• 
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STATE OP SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) VERIFICATION 


County of ) 
~ ~ r,Ut/11/; ~ 


I, , bcins duly sworn upon niy oath, depose and ally tlurt I have ,ubscribed to the forcgdng 
application: that 1 know t110 conter\ts thereof; that lt Includes cveey ground known tc me for 
vacating, setting llllidc or correcting the conviolion lllld scntenco nttackcd Jn this app!Ication; 1111d 
that the mattera and ellegali:n, thcre\11 s~lfo~ ~ 


l ♦ I 


SWORN to and suhscrlbod before me this 3 \ 
dayof~..w...i-~~__,2t,M) 


---4P::/~..1=,.4::~l.la.ll._~(L.S,) 


My Commission Expires: 3-\ j • ;?()d-9 


' 
..... ¥1116N-~ ... • • • ... 


~ 


6 


,, 


' 
.,, ,-.., 
~ 


~ ~t; ,.. 
"11 s; 


-< al :;,; --c:o - r-:;~8 c:, 


!la, m ~8<:: = 0 c:: ::u cl? ;:: -i ... -...: 0\ 


R.miedJ/2003 
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APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT 
OF COSTS AND AJ.l'J'JDA. VlT 


Il'I SUPl'ORT THEREOF 
/i;r/1,M{ Jt!#lf5 ~ vil, 


1, , hereby apply for lca'lll lo proceed ht this action without prepayment offcea or coslll ot 
aecurlcy therefor, In support of my app\lcatlo~ I d11clar1r under pe!lalty of perjury that the 
following facts are true: 


(l) I 11111 the applicant in\ls actio~ 811d I believe I am enlitled to red.fess, 


@) Boca use of my poverty I lun im :ble to pity the cost of said proce«lins or give 


security thereof. ~• ~--~~~.,;c ...... o:::: .... ~~-r_::;.._~~~;;;;a;;:-


and subscribed before me thls 
__;~~---ii-'' 2.d.29 


7 


App/leant 


+ 


..,, -.. 
m 
C 


lbvl1od 3fl00S 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG 


Douglas J. Wright, Jr., #336546, 


Applicant, 


IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 
FOR THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 


Case No.: 2020-CP-42-02659 


v. RETURN AND MOTION FOJ!.~ 
MORE DEFINITE ST k't.EME!!f 


State of South Carolina, ;·, ;::: '·-


Respondent. ;1 ~\'. : .,. ...... 


C) {~,l ~~l ~! 


NOW COMES Respondent, moving for a more definite statement and maki~ its r;rn 
--~'i 
·,•r,-.,,, 


"'"•·I (.J\ 
~:-; UJ 


to the post-conviction relief (hereafter "PCR") application filed on August 10, 2020 tfy Douglas 


J. Wright, Jr. (hereafter "Applicant"). Respondent offers the following in support ofits return: 


I. Procedural History 


Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant 


to orders of commitment from the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court. During its February 2019 


term, the Spartanburg County Grand Jury indicted Applicant for possession of a firearm or 


ammunition by person convicted ofa violent crime (2019-GS-42-1336), first degree burglary 


(count one) and possession of a weapon during a violate crime (count two) (2019-GS-42-1337), 


petit larceny (2019-GS-42-1338), carjacking (count one) and possession of a weapon during a 


violent crime ( count two) (2019-GS-42-1451 ), and first degree assault and battery (2019-GS-42-


1452). Applicant was represented by James Cheek, Esquire. Assistant Solicitor Spenser H. Smith 


of the Seventh Circuit Solicitor's Office prosecuted the case. On September 9, 2019, Applicant 


appeared before the Honorable Grace G. Knie, circuit court judge, and pied guilty as indicted, 


with the exception of the first degree burglary charge, which he pied to the lesser included 


offense of second degree violent burglary. The only recommendation in the case was concurrent 
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sentencing. Judge Knie sentenced Applicant to twenty years' imprisonment, suspended upon 


service of ten years, for carjacking and possession of a weapon during a violent crime, fifteen 


years, suspended upon ten years' service, for second degree burglary, ten years for petit larceny, 


ten years for assault and battery, and five years for the three remaining weapons possession 


charges, sentences running concurrently. Applicant did not pursue a direct appeal. 


II. Statement of Facts 


On September 11, 2018, the police received a call concerning a woman, Ms. Pace, was 


driving down tbe road and came across Applicant and his co-defendant, Jennifer Dillard, in the 


middle of the road, blocking the way. (Tr. 21-22). Pace slowed down and Applicant began 


yelling at her to stop and get out oftbe car. (Tr. 22). Applicant pulled out a gun and pointed it at 


Pace. Dillard screamed "you don't want to do that" and pulled out a gun. (Tr. 22). Pace put her 


car in reverse and began backing up. (Tr. 22 ). 
!-,.~ r-: 


A driver operating their car in tbe opposite lane witnessed this and called 91 L (;]1r'.~22)f--:; 


~:~? ?. :: 
The witness staled they saw the man fire two to three shots in the air and then both indi:¥.ldiials" 


:·-- . : . 


stash the pistols. (Tr. 22). Fi :~!~ ;.i ~1 
.. C! ··.i '-.!? 


:,,·::, ~ 


Another incident happened that night concerning the two co-defendants. (Tr. 22):;.;Here, u:> 


there was a home invasion of a weed dealer who allegedly owed Applicant drugs. (Tr. 22). 


Applicant and Dillard went to the house to "settle [the J score." (Tr. 22). Applicant and Dillard 


may have been let in under the guise of buying marijuana, but at some point it turned to pistols 


being drawn and Applicant and Dillard attempting to get money from the male occupant of the 


house. (Tr. 22-23). 


A female and her children were in the house at the time. (Tr. 23). At this, they ran out of 


the house to the next door neighbor's. (Tr. 23). Applicant went after them with a pistol and 
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knocked on the neighbor's house. (Tr. 23). Applicant claimed he was not trying to scare the 


children, but claimed he was not expecting them at the house at the time and wanted to 


apologize. (Tr. 23). Applicant was met in the foyer by Mr. Pierson, the victim. (Tr. 23). 


Applicant stated he wanted not apologize and did not want to scare them. (Tr. 23). Applicant was 


armed with a pistol. (Tr. 23). 


The petit larceny charge stems from a man, Mr. Clary, that let them stay at his place. (Tr. 


23). Clary made it back to his house and noticed some of his belongings were taken, including 


two handguns used in the case. (Tr. 23). Both co-defendants gave incriminating statements to 


police. (Tr. 24). 


III. Current Action before the Court 


: n '··­
In his pro se PCR application, Applicant alleges he is detained unlawfully foi'~)\ :~ 


~~:-~ ·l·-: ~: ?. i'-J 


following reasons (excerpts verbatim): ';,j; \; :; ~:; 


1. "Ineffective assistance of counsel." ··' l :·, ';? 
a. "I dismiss[ ed] my public defendant at a hearing, the Judge force[ d] the atfum~y ~ 


on me, I did not want the public defender's office to represent me" -< 
b. "[T]he [public defender's] office did no[t] investigat[e] [] my case, look at the 


charges stack[ ed] on me." 
c. "[My] co-defendant lied about the case, my attorney never talk[ed] to her." 
d. "After I tried to dismiss my attorney, they violated my constitutional rights, I was 


pressure[d] by my attorney and the public defend[er's] office."1 


Attached to and incorporated herein are Applicant's Spartanburg County Clerk of Court 


Records, Applicant's South Carolina Department of Corrections Records, the plea transcript, and 


the current PCR application. Respondent reserves the right to amend this return upon receipt of 


additional relevant information. 


1 Respondent interprets this claim as an allegation that the plea was not entered freely, 
knowingly, intelligently, and voluntarily and, thus, remains invalid. 
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IV. Argument 


Ineffective Assistance of Counsel 


In a PCR action, the applicant bears the burden of proving allegations contained in the 


application. Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441,334 S.E2d 813 (1985). When an applicant asserts 


ineffective assistance of counsel as a ground for relief, the applicant must show "counsel's 


conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process that [it] cannot be relied 


upon as having produced a just result." Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 686 (1984); 


Butler, 286 S.C. at 442,334 S.E.2d at 814. Ineffective assistance of counsel is governed by the 


Sixth Amendment, as explained by the United States Supreme Court in Strickland v. ..~ 
?· .. ~ 


Washington. ; •· ~ 
:.r: r--:. r.­


~- :.~ c~ :·:: 
Pursuant to the first prong of the Strickland analysis, the applicant must pjjiye:aefeilse 


~-~ ~ ':? r" 
counsel's performance was deficient. Id. at 686; Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 1 (1/3l!ll; S.E':2d 


~~~ f. ~:: ~~ 
624, 625 (!989). To show deficiency, the applicant must prove by a preponderance@fhe ;_;, 


-·· u) -•. 
evidence that counsel's actions fell outside of the zone of"reasonableness under prevailing 


professional norms." Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688. See also Rule 71.l(e), SCRCP ("The applicant 


has the burden of establishing his entitlement to relief by a preponderance of the evidence."). 


Reasonableness is determined by the "variety of circumstances faced by defense counsel or the 


range oflegitimate decisions regarding how to best represent a criminal defendant," and the 


scope of the reasonableness inquiry is limited to facts counsel had available at the time of 


representation. Id. at 689. "Counsel is strongly presumed to have rendered adequate assistance 


and made all significant decisions in the exercise ofreasonable professional judgment." 


Yarborough v. Gentry, 540 U.S. I, 5 (2003) (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690). Judicial scrutiny 


of counsel's performance remains highly deferential towards defense counsel with a strong 
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preswnption that counsel acted competently, because competent representation may be executed 


in virtually "countless" ways. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688-89. 


Second, counsel's deficient perfonnance must have prejudiced the applicant so that 


"there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the 


proceeding would have been different." Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18. "A reasonable probability is 


a probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome." Strickland, 466 U.S. at 694. 


The court makes this determination based upon the totality of the evidence. Id. at 695. ,.._, ,... .. .... ~. 
Realistically, this matters "'only in the rarest case"' because "[t]he likelihood of a di~~f~nt ~ult .. ,·t 
must be substantial, not just conceivable." Harrington v. Richter, 562 U.S. 86, I l l~t::V(i61 I;~ 


-. i_ • .:. (·, N 


(quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697). :;\;'. ,:::_ :~ 
:-.::_r;.t~ l...'::J 


The standards do not establish mechanical rules; the ultimate focus of inquiry n'j~st·,be m,i. 
-: ..0 


the fundamental fairness of the proceeding whose result is being challenged. Strickland, 466 U.S. 


at 696. A court need not first determine whether counsel's perfonnance was deficient before 


examining the prejudice suffered by the defendant as a result of the alleged deficiencies; ifit is 


easier to dispose of an ineffectiveness claim on the ground of!ack of sufficient prejudice, that 


course should be followed. Id. at 696-97. 


Invalid Plea 


In the context of a guilty plea, the applicant must show there is a reasonable probability 


that, but for ineffective assistance of counsel, he or she would not have pied guilty but, instead, 


would have insisted on going to trial, Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 59 (I 985). Applicant's right 


to contest the validity of a plea is usually, but not invariably, foreclosed because of the inherent 


solemnity and truthfulness included in the guilty plea process. See Blackledge v. Allison, 431 


U.S. 63, 73-74 (1977) ("Solemn declarations in open court carry a strong presumption of verity. 
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The subsequent presentation of conclusory allegations unsupported by specifics is subject to 


swnmary dismissal, as are contentions that in the face of the record are wholly incredible."). 


Absent valid reasons why the applicant is entitled to depart from previous judicial admissions 


made at the plea hearing, statements made during the original proceeding remain conclusive. 


Dalton v. State, 376 S.C. 130, 137-38, 654 S.E.2d 870,874 (Ct. App. 2007) (citing Crawfordv. 


United States, 519 F.2d 347, 350 (4th Cir. 1975)). 


For a plea to be valid, the applicant must have been aware of the nature and crucial 


elements of the offense the maximum and minimwn penalties, and the rights he is waiving by 


accepting the plea. Boykin v. Alabama, 395 U.S. 238 (1969); Roddy v. State, 339 S.C. 29 (2000). 


A plea is not knowing or voluntary if a defendant "lacks knowledge of material evidence in the 


prosecution's possession." Gibson v. State, 334 S.C. 515,523,514 S.E.2d 320,324 (1999). ,.._, 
f. "") ,.;· ... 


'" ' A defendant's knowing and voluntary waiver of statutory or constitutional rigfos,::nm~[i,e 
·: ~ \·~ :_:;, ~~~ 


established by a complete record, and "may be accomplished by colloquy between th!=l5~~rt ~ 
< .. :·· . \ 
. - -·:· r·· •:~ 


defendant, between the court and defendant's counsel, or both." Roddy v. State, 339 8·;(~} ~t,34;:;'~ 
·.- ·, ~-~-. c. \.0 


528 S.E.2d at 421 (citing State v. Ray, 310 S.C. 431,437,427 S.E.2d 171, 174 (1993)).'~['l']h~ 


voluntariness of a guilty plea is not determined by an examination of the specific inquiry made 


by the sentencing judge alone, but is determined from both the record made at the time of the 


entry of the guilty plea and the record of the post-conviction hearing."' Dalton, 3 76 S.C. at 138, 


654 S.E.2d at 874 (quoting Harres v. Leeke, 282 S.C. 131,133,318 S.E.2d 360,361 (1984)). 


Further, "guilty pleas, freely and voluntarily entered, act as a waiver of all non-jurisdictional 


defects and defenses, including claims of a violation of a constitutional right prior to the plea." 


Whetsell v. State, 276 S.C. 295,297, 277 S.E.2d 891, 892 (1981 ). 


Respondent contends that Applicant's plea was entered freely, knowingly, intelligently, 
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and voluntarily. During group qualifications Applicant remained standing, indicating that he 


understood he was there to plead to the charges against him, that he was waiving his right to a 


trial, waiving the right to call and confront witnesses, waiving the right to remain silent, waiving 


the right to present evidence, waiving the beyond a reasonable doubt burden of proof on the 


State, and waiving the presumption of innocent until proven guilty and the need for a unanimous 


jury verdict to convict. (Tr. 10-11). Applicant also remained standing when asked told to stand if 


he was satisfied with Counsel's services. (Tr. 11-12). Applicant remained standing when told to 


stand ifhe understood he only had ten days to appeal. (Tr. 12). Applicant remained standing, 


indicating that he was not under the influence of any substance and did not have a mental 9~ 
... : :·,.> 


physical infirmity impairing his judgment or understanding of what he was doing_ ~:th.1 pl;; 
;/.t.'-t . . ,. 


hearing. (Tr. 12-13). \fs:,\:·. 1
;~ 


In the individual colloquy, Applicant stated he understood the offenses he~~ f?Iea<\tgg 
c:: - •. 


to, the negotiations or recommendations attached, the sentencing ranges on all crimet;,tlJ~t ~­.v.. 


suspendable sentences attached to certain charges could not be suspended, that certain crimes are 


considered violent and serious and the impact that classification has, and that there is a no 


contact provision associated with all victims. (Tr. 1 S-20). Applicant also stated he understood 


that if he did not plead he would be indicted for other crimes that he would go to trial on, 


including home invasion, armed robbery, kidnapping, and first degree burglary. (Tr. 20). After 


being informed of this, Applicant stated he was pleading freely, knowingly, and voluntarily. (Tr. 


21 ). Thus, based upon the contents of the plea colloquy transcript, Applicant likely pied freely, 


knowingly, intelligently, and voluntarily entered and, thus, Applicant should not be able to 


depart from it now. 
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Prohibited From Proceeding Pro Se 


Applicant's claims he is entitled to PCR relief because of ineffective assistance of 


counsel for failure to allow him to proceed prose. "It is well-established that an accused may 


waive the right to counsel and proceed prose." State v. Reed, 332 S.C. 35, 41, 503 S.E.2d 747, 


750 (1998). This right must be honored even ifit is to the defendant's detriment and must be 


asserted prior to trial. Id. The right to counsel must be waived knowingly and intelligently, with 


an understanding of the consequences. Id. The trial judge has the responsibility to guarantee the · 


waiver of Counsel is done knowingly and intelligently. State v. Barnes, 407 S.C. 27, 36, 753 


S.E.2d 545,550 (2014). Additionally, a trial judge is not required to permit hybrid ~-' 
r 1 ,::.;.• 
·~•j '::~ 


representation, a situation where applicant proceeds partially pro se and partially by 4~el.:fd. 


at 43, 503 S.E.2d at 751. ~\J}i\ ·: 
:~- ~•-•, r·, 7.':'!t 


Respondent contends that the plea hearing transcript does not indicate that App_l~.f~ ~ 
C .-.. . 


wanted to proceed pro se, let alone that he waived this right knowingly and intelligentlyf ~rt~ 


entering the plea. Thus, there is no indication Applicant tried to waive this right before entering 


the plea. Consequently, Respondent contends this claim is likely without merit. 


Failure to Investigate 


Applicant claims Counsel failed to investigate the case and the charges against him. 


Applicant is required to present evidence or witnesses he alleges Counsel did not properly 


investigate. Glover v. State, 318 S.C. 496, 498-99, 458 S.E.2d 538,540 (1995). Additionally, 


whether Applicant was prejudiced by Counsel's failure to investigate is contingent on whether 


the evidence presented would have led Counsel to change her recommendation regarding the 


plea. Stalk v. State, 383 S.C. 559,562,681 S.E.2d 592, 594 (2009). 


Applicant fails to show what Counsel failed to investigate, what would have been 
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discovered ifhe investigated further, or how it would have impacted his decision to plead. Thus, 


a more definite statement is needed for Respondent to ascertain whether or not the allegation has 


merit. 


Failure to Interview Witness 


Applicant claims Counsel was ineffective for failing to contact his co-defendant and 


stated the co-defendant lied about him. At a minimum, counsel must interview potential 


witnesses and make independent investigations regarding the facts and circumstances of the case. 


Ard. v. Catoe, 372 S.C. 318, 642 S.E.2d 590 (2007). Mere speculation regarding the witness's 


testimony is insufficient to establish prejudice. Clark v. State, 315S.C. 385, 434 S.E.2d 266 


(1993). Additionally, whether Applicant was prejudiced by Counsel's failure to call and 
r 'J ':"' ! 


investigate witnesses is contingent on whether the evidence presented would have l!ld Cou.nsel to 
:-.'.;°2 ::_ . 


....._ :•: ;,l :-~~ 


change his recommendation regarding the plea. Stalk v. State, 383 S.C. 559, 562;'~$1 :_S.E.2d 


~~i ~) ,<I ~ 
,, ..... 


0 ,.-J ~·::: Z:,; .. , .... ~.: 
~-~;. (? _::; :_. .. ~; 


592, 594 (2009). 


Applicant fails to state what his co-defendant lied about, what Counsel woul<Siii,ve ~? 
:.~: ' r . .:-'"1 
:) \.C 


discovered ifhe contacted the witness, or how talking with the co-defendant would liiive changed 


Counsel's recommendation to plead. A more definitive statement is needed for Respondent to 


ascertain whether or not the allegation has merit. 


The ineffective assistance of counsel allegations probably raise questions of fact that the 


record does not conclusively refute. Accordingly, Respondent respectfully requests an 


evidentiary hearing to fully resolve this issue. See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. 264, 265, 305 


S.E.2d 247, 248 (1983) ("Where an application for post-conviction relief alleges specific 


instances of ineffective assistance of counsel which are not conclusively refuted by the record 


before the lower colll't, a question of fact is raised which can only be resolved by an evidentiary 
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hearing."). 


V. Motion for a More Definite Statement 


Respondent moves for a more definite statement regarding Applicant's allegations. 


Applicant alleges that his plea is invalid and that plea COW1sel was constitutionally ineffective 


because of failure to contact witnesses, failure to investigate, and failure to allow Applicant to 


proceed pro se. However, he does not explain exactly what Counsel did that constituted 


ineffective assistance of counsel or exactly what about the plea was invalid. Applicant fails to set 


forth with specificity any facts and circumstances upon the claim is based. The Uniform Post­


Conviction Procedure Act requires that applicants must "specifically set forth the groW1ds upon 


which the application is based." Section I 7-27-50 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina (I 976). 


In a PCR application, it is incumbent upon applicants to make at least a prima facie sfiowin!fi 
;:" t.· -:-


which would entitle him to relief before an evidentiary hearing will be scheduled an{~&~W- ;~ 
:/,(°:;'.' N 


Welch v. MacDougall, 246 S.C. 258, 143 S.E.2d 455 (1965); Blandshawv. State, 24S;S.9. 38_~ 


-;..~~ \~:~ -~_?. ::~: 
140 S.E.2d 784 (1965). The Supreme Court of South Carolina has provided that: ' . '~? 


l~~:·, <.J1 


[M]ere allegations of incompetency or ineffectiveness of coW1sel will not 
ordinarily suffice as grounds for a new trial under the Post-Conviction Procedure 
Act. The bare assertion by the appellant that he was deprived of coW1sel is 
insufficient. 


Coardes v. State, 262 S.C. 493, 497, 206 S.E.2d 264, 265 (1974). 


u) 


Furthennore, Rule 8(a), SCRCP, requires all civil pleadings include "a short and plain 


statement of the facts showing that the pleader is entitled to relief." Respondent moves pursuant 


to Rule 12(e), SCRCP, to require Applicant to provide a more definite statement of his claims. 


Respondent moves to require Applicant to file an additional amended application well in 


advance of any evidentiary hearing concerning this matter. If Applicant fails to file a timely and 


responsive amended application setting forth specific allegations for relief, Respondent reserves 
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the right to move to dismiss the allegation. 


VI. Other Allegations Denied 


Each and every other allegation in Applicant's PCR application not explicitly admitted, 


qualified, or explain in this return is hereby denied by Respondent. 


VII. Assertion of Rights to Notice of Amendments, Experts 


Applicant should raise any claims he intends to raise at the PCR evidentiary hearing well 


in advance of the hearing. Here, Applicant's court-appointed attorney is the only individqal, 
{ ,-, . ,:-::., 
~) ~ 


authorized to file amendments to this application, given his representative capacity'~~le 1:/;(a), · ;s"'1 
-.~.:~ ~.- :.::·: ~--: -:~~:: 


SCRCP and prose filings will not be considered at the PCR hearing. State v. Dei:o1,'M6 !fr:. . :··: 
•.• - ::.: ~.' ':1 • 


l 15, 123, 784 S.E.2d 690,694 (Ct. App. 2016) (Prose filing is a nullity where p~~ ~as~ '•:j 
:··,: '2 ':1-:. '-.? '•• 


represented by counsel); Miller v. State, 388 S.C. 347, 697 S.E.2d 527 (2010) ("Sine~~ ifili_o .. .-: 
right to 'hybrid representation' that is partially prose and partially by counsel, substantive 


documents, with the exception of motions to relief counsel, filed prose by a person represented 


by counsel are not to be accepted unless submitted by counsel."). 


Respondent reserves the right to request that any amendments withheld until the last 


minute be stricken because of undue prejudice to Respondent or, in the alternative, continue the 


matter to permit adequate time to investigate and address the claims. See Mangal v. State, 421 


S.C. 85, 805 S.E.2d 568 (2017) ("In most PCR cases ... we have refused to excuse the pleading 


and issue-preservation requirements that apply in all civil cases."); Love v. State, 428 S.C. 231, 


242,834 S.E.2d 196,201 (2019) ("When analyzing the substance of a proposed amendment and 


any prejudice the State might suffer, a PCR court should consider all relevant circumstances, 


including, but not limited to, the timing of the motion, the complexity of the new issue, the 


degree of surprise to the State, the need for and availability of necessary witnesses to defend 
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against the claim, and whether the substance of the proposed amendment is readily apparent 


from the underlying plea or trial record."); see also Rules 15(a)-(b), SCRCP (explaining how to 


amend a pleading). Pursuant to Section 17-27-150 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, 


Applicant may not invoke formal discovery processes to issue subpoenas or otherwise obtain 


discovery materials unless the Court grants leave upon good cause shown. Furthermore, 


Respondent requests that all potential exhibits and materials used to produce potential expert 


witness testimony be sent to Respondent well in advance of the evidentiary hearing. Respondent 


reserves the right to request a continuance and oppose witness testimony and exhibits withheld 


until the last minute resulting in undue prejudice to Respondent. 


VIII. Conclusion ,.:-.. 
.. :::: 


1:; ~~. {_ 
WHEREFORE, Respondent requests that the Court require Applicant to p,9!j<j,~ a itlbre 


· .. ' •' :, :, .. 
~·~ :.~ ('. N 


definite statement and then hold an evidentiary hearing regarding Applicant's allega!ioris. 
·J~i? ~ 


January 7, 2021 


Respectfully submitted, :_;, ~! f·; 
;.:; ~-1 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG 


Douglas Wright, #336546 


Applicant, 


v. 


State of South Carolina 


Respondent, 


) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 


IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 
FOR THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 


Case No.: 2020-CP-42-02659 


Certificate of Service by Mail 


1. I am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action. 


2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and that this 
is a proper circwnstance of service by mail. 


• .. •:· :-.. :1 
~._1 l~~; 


3. I have this day served a copy of the Return in the above-captioned matter on !lt~foll~ng ... ,, 
person by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid: •,, ;'1 t 1, :,:; .\,; • 


DATED this 7 th day of January, 2021. 


Rodney Wade Riehey, Esquire 
Richey & Richey, PA 
PO Box 10916 
Greenville, SC 29603-0916 
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Rodney Richey, Esq. 
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For the Defendant: William Ray, Esq. 
Thirteenth Circuit Solicitor's Office 


305 E North Street, Ste. 325 
Greenville, SC 29601 


Also Present: James A. Cheek, Esq. 
Seventh Circuit Public Defender 


366 N. Church St., Ste. 3000 
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21 


22 
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25 


4 


PROCEEDINGS 


THE COURT: Who is next, Mr. Ray? 


MR. RAY: Thank you, Your Honor. May it 


please the Court. This next one is the matter 


of "Douglas J. Wright, Jr. vs. The State of 


South Carolina." We're here under Case Number 


2020-CP-42-02659. 


Mr. Wright is currently incarcerated. He 


was indicted back in February of 2019, here in 


Spartanburg by the Grand Jury for possession 


of a firearm or ammunition by a person 


convicted of a violent crime, first degree 


burglary, and possession of a weapon during a 


violent crime. He -- as well as, petty 


larceny, carjacking, and possession of a 


weapon during a violent crime and the 


additional first degree assault and battery. 


He was represented by Attorney James 


Cheek from the public defender's office, who's 


here today, and Assistant Solicitor Spenser 


Smith prosecuted the case. He appeared before 


Judge Knie on September 9th, 2019, and pled 


guilty as indicted with the exception of the 


first degree burglary and on that one he had 


pled --
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THE COURT: It's not in my notes here. What 


charges he pled guilty to? 


5 


MR. RAY: And so everything -- I have a packet 


for you if you want me to go ahead and pass 


that up? 


THE COURT: That would be great. 


MR. RAY: I do think my legal assistant went a 


little haywire and gave you some extra copies 


of the clerk's records, but 


THE COURT: Yeah. 


MR. RAY: -- everything's in there, at least 


once or twice or three times. 


THE COURT: Looks like it. 


MR. RAY: But, yes. So, he was charged with 


the possession of a firearm by a person 


convicted of a violent crime, possession of a 


weapon during a violent crime, petty larceny, 


carjacking, another possession of a weapon 


during a violent crime, and first degree 


assault and battery. He pled to all those, 


and then he pled to the lesser included 


offense of second degree burglary with 


violence. 


The only recommendations on this plea 


were that the sentences be imposed 
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6 


concurrently. Judge Knie accepted the plea 


and sentenced him to 20 years suspended upon 


service of 10 for the carjacking and 


possession of the weapons, 15 years suspended 


upon service of 10 for the second degree 


burglary, 10 years for petty larceny, 10 years 


for assault and battery, and 5 for the 


remaining weapons charges. All of the 


sentences were imposed concurrently pursuant 


to the agreement. He did not pursue a direct 


appeal of his conviction or sentence. 


And, again, Your Honor, we move for a 


more definite statement, we received some 


general allegations about ineffective 


assistance of counsel without too many factual 


circumstances backing them up, so we would 


just ask that Mr. Richey state that on the 


record. 


THE COURT: Mr. Richey? 


MR. RICHEY: Yes, Your Honor. We've got a 


failure to investigate claim that the lawyer 


did not investigate the issues in this case. 


Two, we've got that the plea was involuntary 


that he didn't make the plea voluntary, that 


he felt like he was forced into doing it. And 
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-- (To Mr. Wright) And those are the issues? 


MR. WRIGHT: Yes, sir. 


MR. RICHEY: Okay. 


THE COURT: Okay. Before we get going, Mr. 


Wright, I'm just going to make sure you want 


to go forward with this. You understand that 


you -- you were facing first degree burglary 


in South Carolina, which can carry up to a 


life sentence? 


MR. WRIGHT: Yes, sir. 


7 


. THE COURT: And as part of this plea, it was 


pled down to burglary second, violent, and the 


sentence you got, based on the charges that 


you pled to, is not an outrageous sentence, 


it's a ten -- a ten-year sentence. You 


understand that? 


MR. WRIGHT: Yes, sir. 


THE COURT: Okay. 


MR. WRIGHT: I do. 


THE COURT: And you understand that the best I 


can do is put you back in the position you 


were in before you started, which would mean 


you've got a first degree burglary charge 


pending against you? 


MR. WRIGHT: I understand, sir. 
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THE COURT: Okay. And you still want to go 


forward? 


MR. WRIGHT: Yes, sir. Because that burglary 


charge shouldn't even be a burglary, I know 


I've got to fight it out, so that's fine with 


me. 


THE COURT: Okay. 


(WHEREUPON, the witness was sworn.) 


DIRECT EXAMINATION 


8 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


BY MR. RICHEY: 


Q Sir, would you state your name, please? 


A 


Q 


15 A 


16 Q 


17 A 


18 


19 


20 


21 


22 


23 


24 


25 


Q 


A 


Douglas James Wright, Jr. 


And you you were convicted in Spartanburg 


County; is that correct? 


Yes, sir. 


And what cases were you convicted of? 


I was convicted of attempted carjacking, assault 


and battery first degree, second degree burglary, 


petty larceny, possession of a weapon during a 


violent crime, possession of a weapon during a 


violent crime, and possession of a firearm first 


degree to a violent felony. 


And -- and James Cheek represented you? 


He represented me when I -- when I pled. My 


initial lawyer was Paul Neely, he was -- he was the 
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22 


23 


24 A 


25 Q 


one I had the problem with. I would not plea with 


him, I -- he didn't do enough to help me out, so I 


refused to -- to take my plea with Paul Neely 


because I felt he was trying to throw me under the 


bus. 


9 


Okay. And so as to Mr. Cheek -- so as to Mr. James 


Cheek, you don't have a complaint with him? 


No, sir. 


So --


I have nothing against Mr. Cheek. Mr. Cheek did 


the best he could with the time limit that he had. 


I just felt like they was trying to bully me and 


force me to take a plea because they was telling me 


I was I was told I was going to either have 


to take this plea that I was charged with that 


it was offered me, or I was going to have to go to 


trial with my codefendant supposedly going to 


testify against me, which in my motion she 


contradicted herself at least three times in the 


statement she gave. 


Hold on. Let me -- let me just break it down. On 


which charges was she going to testify against you 


on? 


All of them, sir. 


Okay. 
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Q 


10 


Because I was going to take them all to trial, sir. 


Okay. All right. Go ahead. 


But I was told -- also, told that there was going 


to be some other charges, that they were going 


force me -- they were going to force to be put upon 


me for some stuff that supposedly happened that 


day, but the supposed victim said that they didn't 


want nothing -- nothing done about that crime. 


They weren't going show up for court; they weren't 


going to do no statements because they didn't 


really feel like there was a crime committed 


against them. 


Okay. Well, you -- okay. So, Mr. Cheek was there 


for the guilty plea, correct? 


Yes, sir. 


And -- and he was the one that you answered all the 


questions for in front of the judge, correct? 


No. I -- I had -- I -- I would -- I would not 


stood -- stood in front of the judge with Mr. 


Neely. I -- I refused to. 


Okay. Well, let me --


I even tried to fire Mr. Neely, but Judge Hayes 


refused to let me fire -- refused to let me fire 


Mr. Neely. 


Okay. Well, let me ask you this question. Okay. 
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Q 


A 


Q 


A 


Q 


A 


Q 


A 


Q 


A 


Q 


Mr. Cheek did the guilty plea, correct? 


That's correct. 


You were satisfied with him? 


I was satisfied he did -­


Okay. 


-- the best he could. 


11 


But the previous lawyer you were not satisfied with 


him? 


Yes, sir. 


Okay. With the previous lawyer, were you going to 


trial or were you going to plea or --


I was I was intending on going to trial, sir. I 


had full intentions on going to trial till I seen 


that Mr. Neely was not trying to fight for me, he 


was trying to just hurry up, make me take -- get me 


to hurry up, get me to take a plea, try to bully me 


into a plea, and and -- and get me on the docket 


-- well, get me off the docket for some charges 


that -- I know I'm guilty of a lot of the charges I 


have, but there's a couple charges I'm not guilty 


of that I was actually wanting to fight. 


Okay. And what charges were those? 


The attempted carjacking and the burglary charge. 


And -- and the -- the -- the carjacking charge was 


the one where you supposedly stand out in the 
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street, correct? 


Yes, sir. 


12 


Okay. And the burglary was the one that you 


supposedly went to the house with the kids, but you 


wasn't trying to break in the house, correct? 


I -- I went into the house under -- under a good 


pretense, and, I mean, I -- I'm not going to lie 


and say I was of right mind, I was intoxicated and 


I wound up going into the house, regardless, but by 


-- by South Carolina statutes I didn't -- well, I 


did do -- did not -- does not -- is not defined as 


burglary. 


Okay. So you -- your position is you entered the 


house with the consent of the owner? 


I didn't enter with the consent of the owner, but 


by the South Carolina statutes, to commit a 


burglary you have to break and enter into a 


dwelling with -- to attempt or with the intentions 


to deprive said dwelling or property. 


Okay. Who told you that? 


Westlaw 


Okay. 


-- told me. 


All right. Okay. 


I have been doing my research. 
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Q 


A 


Q 


A 


Q 


A 


Q 


A 


Q 


A 


Q 


Okay. Nobody told you that burglary was -- was 


enter without consent of the owner to commit a 


crime? 


That's breaking and entering and doing it -­


Okay. 


-- with 


Okay. Well, let me -- let me ask you this. Okay. 


So -- so the other lawyer you were not going to 


plea in front of, correct? 


Yes, sir. 


13 


Okay. So you got Mr. Cheek, you're still innocent 


in front of Mr. Cheek, too, right? With Mr. Cheek 


you're still innocent, right? 


Yes, sir. 


Why didn't you tell Mr. Cheek, "Hey, I appreciate 


what you're doing for me. I was not going to plea 


with the other guy, and I'm not going to plea with 


you. No offense to you, I know you got it late, 


whatever, whatever, but I'm going to trial"? 


Because Mr. Cheek, all he does -- the reason I 


didn't go to trial with Mr. Cheek is because all 


Mr. Cheek does is enter pleas. And if Mr. -- if I 


could have got Mr. Cheek to -- to take me to trial, 


I would have. 


Did you ask him to? 
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All Mr. Cheek's ever done 


told is he's plea bargain 


bargain. 


14 


all I've ever been 


he's told me he's plea 


Well, I understand -- I understand his role in the 


office, but I'm just saying: Did you ever say to 


Mr. Cheek, ''I want a trial''? 


I told him I wanted a trial. 


Okay. 


I told him I didn't want to plea. 


Okay. 


THE COURT: (To Mr. Richey) Hold on. (To the 


witness) You -- so your testimony is, you 


told Mr. Cheek you did not want to plead 


guilty --


THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 


THE COURT: 


you -- okay. 


and you wanted a trial? That 


THE WITNESS: I -- I told him I was doing it 


anyway, just go ahead and get it done with 


because of my -- my way of thinking -- my -­


my --


No. Hold -- hold. Say that I again, I didn't even 


hear that. Say that --


I told Mr. Cheek that I wanted a trial. I told him 


I didn't want to plead, but I'm gonna go ahead and 
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plead to get it done with, so I could start my 


paperwork for when I got to SCDC for -- the PCR. 


THE COURT: (To the witness) I mean, you --


you're -- but you -- I think what you just 


said was you told Mr. Cheek you did want to 


plead guilty? 


15 


THE WITNESS: I didn't want to plead guilty, 


but I'm going to plead guilty to go ahead and 


get this done with so I can get down the road 


because the -- the like I said, the -- I 


tried to fire my lawyer, Mr. Neely. 


THE COURT: Right. 


THE WITNESS: I went in front of Mr. Hayes to 


try to fire my lawyer. He refused to let me 


fire my lawyer, so if I'm stuck with the same 


lawyer -- now, I have no money, I'm an 


indigent, so that means I can't -- I can't 


hire or pay a lawyer, so why am I going to go 


to trial or -- or even plea with a lawyer 


that I'm trying to fire. A lawyer that told 


Judge Hayes, at court, that if he 


Judge Hayes allows him to fire me 


that if 


allows me 


to fire him -- I'm sorry -- that I can never, 


ever help -- hope for help from Spartanburg 


County Public Defender's office, again. 
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16 


THE COURT: All right. 


THE WITNESS: So why am I going to go to court 


with somebody like that, when I 


nothing I can do. 


there's 


Okay. So -- so you just decided to plead guilty to 


get it over with? 


To -- to get it over with, get down the road and go 


ahead and start my PCR and go back and try to fight 


it again and hope to God I don't get the same 


lawyer. 


Okay. So you're saying that this lawyer just -­


just did not want to help you, that's your issue 


with him? 


That's the way it seemed to me. 


Did -- okay. All of this investigation and -- and 


-- and involuntary plea is all pursuant to the 


first lawyer not wanting to help you? 


Yes, sir. 


Okay. So so I'll be crystal clear with this. 


What did the first lawyer do that you believe he 


did not effectively represent you? 


He -- in my opinion, he allowed Mr. Smith to try to 


bully me into taking a plea of five to twenty. 


And Smith is the solicitor? 


Is the solicitor. 
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Okay. 


I had a e-mail that Mr. Neely gave me that was sent 


to him from Mr. Smith. I -- I've been looking for 


it; I can't find it. I don't know where it's at in 


-- in all my paperwork, but it -- it states Mr. 


Spenser Smith saying that if I don't take this plea 


that he's gonna hit me for a kidnapping charge, a 


home invasion, another home invasion, another 


kidnapping, and some drug charges. 


Well 


That has nothing to do with nothing. Like I said, 


there's -- there was some stuff that happened at 


at a -at the drug dealer's house next door. 


They ain't wanting -- they didn't wanna press 


charges, so that has nothing to do with nothing. 


Okay. He hit you -- he said he's going to do all 


those charges, now what? He's --


And he 


Go 


said if I go to trial, he -- he -- and he told 


Mr. Neely, because Mr. Neely told me, that if I go 


to trial, he's gonna make sure I do life in prison. 


Okay. All right. 


And I said, "So you're not going to try to fight or 


anything." I said, "And by the way, in these 
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statements'' -- when I finally got my motion, I told 


Mr. Neely -- I showed him in the statements in my -


- where my codefendant lied. 


Right. 


Then corrected it when -- when the officers -- when 


the deputies caught her lying, and she corrected 


herself with a lie, again. And then he caught it 


again, and then she told another lie. So, you're 


gonna -- you're willing to take the word of 


somebody who's been caught lying three times in the 


statement she gave to -- to deputies? You're 


willing to put that person on the stand? 


Uh-huh. 


THE COURT: Mr. Wright, let me -- you had Mr. 


Neely, and I understand you're very unhappy 


with Mr. Neely. 


THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 


THE COURT: You got a new lawyer, Mr. Cheek --


THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 


THE COURT: -- correct? 


THE WITNESS: I took him to solve the plea. 


THE COURT: He -- he -- he was your plea 


lawyer? 


THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 


THE COURT: Did you have any complaints at all 


76







1 


2 


3 


4 


5 


6 


7 


8 


9 


10 


11 


12 


13 


14 


15 


16 


17 


18 Q 


19 


20 A 


21 


22 Q 


23 A 


24 


25 


about what Mr. Cheek -­


THE WITNESS: I had -­


THE COURT: -- had done? 


THE WITNESS: -- no complaints about Mr. 


Cheek. 


THE COURT: Okay. 


MR. RICHEY: Okay. 


THE WITNESS: I had I had no complaints 


19 


about him. He did the best he could with what 


he --


THE COURT: But he was your lawyer at the time 


of the plea? 


THE WITNESS: He -- I -- I he was the only 


person that would take it. I wouldn't take 


nobody else. I wasn't gonna plead with nobody 


else. 


THE COURT: Okay. 


Okay. And -- and -- and let me ask you: Did Mr. 


Cheek advise you to plead guilty? 


He told me that the plea he got was the best he 


could do at -- at the time. 


Okay. 


I told him, I said, ''I want to take it to trial." 


He said, "Mr. Wright, you do know if you take 


it to trial, you're looking at doing life in prison 
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because the codefendant is going to take the 


stand.'' 


I said, "I understand that.'' 


He says and he left the decision up to me. 


20 


I made the decision because I couldn't get no -- I 


knew I couldn't afford a a good attorney. I --


my -- my public defender really wasn't doing enough 


for me; I made the decision to take a plea with Mr. 


Cheek just so I could try to come back on a PCR 


because I had -- I -- I absolutely had no other 


option. I had no -- I had nothing. 


Okay. And who who -- and who told you you 


actually could do this strategy; plead guilty and 


come back on PCR? Who told you could do this 


strategy? 


I mean, this is my fifth time doing time, I mean -­


Okay. 


-- I just figured I was -- try something new when I 


had nothing else, it's the only thing -- only 


option I had. 


Yes, sir. Thank you. 


MR. RICHEY: (To the witness) Answer the 


questions the Attorney General has for you. 


THE COURT: Mr. Ray? 


CROSS-EXAMINATION 
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Mr. Wright, when did you first meet James Cheek? 


I don't know, a few years ago, about '08/'09, 


something like that. 


Okay. In relation to this case, when did he first 


come to represent you? 


I don't remember. 


Okay. When did you get rid of Paul Neely? 


I've been trying to get rid of him 


remember when he put in for the 


I can't even 


it was after --


I think it was like at my -- my second bond hearing 


Okay. 


when I told him I wanted to fire him. 


Do you remember about how long it was -­


No. 


-- before you pled? 


I really don't. 


No idea? 


I took a -- about an inch of sheet metal to the 


head a few years ago, so my -- my -- my brain's 


-- not too good. 


Okay. How many times did you get to meet with 


not 


Mr. 


Neely or Mr. Cheek -- either one, multiple times or 
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I met with Mr. -- I met with Mr. Cheek more than I 


met with Neely. 


Okay. And you had Mr. Cheek and you decided to 


plead guilty? 


He's the only one I would allow to plead guilty 


with, sir, because I respect Mr. Cheek. I know he 


would do anything he can to help me if -- if I was 


in a bad situation and the situation I was in was 


bad. And I know he did everything he could, with 


the time frame he did, to help me. 


Okay. And I believe you said that you pled just to 


get it over with? 


Yeah. Just to get it over with so I could get down 


the road and file -- try to file for a PCR, which 


I'm back on now. 


Okay. 


Because I -- like I said, I had no foot to stand 


on. I wanted to take my -- my charges to trial 


just so I could fight the burglary and the 


carjacking, but I couldn't because I'm not gonna 


take -- I'm not gonna -- who who in their right 


mind would -- is going to go to trial with a court 


appointed lawyer who's not going to help him? 


And so what did Mr. Neely do that soured y'all's 


relationship so much? 
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He never did what he said he was gonna do; never 


did what he was supposed to do. He never 


investigated the -- the claim about how Mr. Smith's 


gonna be able to charge me with stuff that he's not 


supposed to be able to charge me with. How he's 


gonna try to railroad me and make me take this 


this five-to-twenty-year plea. How he's gonna 


guarantee me that I'm gonna do life in prison if I 


go to trial, and how that he's gonna put a known 


liar on the stand to testify against me. 


Did you -- you didn't accept that plea, though 


No. 


-- that five to twenty? 


No. Not originally. 


Okay. 


Then I had to. 


Did Mr. Cheek have enough time once he began 


representing you? 


I didn't -- I got the same plea. 


You got the same plea? 


He -- he didn't have enough time to really do 


anything because it was either take the plea or 


next week I was supposed to go on the docket and go 


to trial. 


Okay. 
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I called my mama and daddy and I asked what them 


what they wanted me to do, they said, "What do you 


rnean?n 


I said, ''Well, if I go to trial, they're gonna 


guarantee I do life in prison.'' I said, "If I take 


a plea, I could probably go do a PCR, maybe get 


back." 


Okay. And do you have any complaint, at all, about 


Mr. Cheek? 


10 A No, sir. About Mr. Cheek, no, sir. 
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MR. RAY: No further questions, Your Honor. 


MR. RICHEY: (To the Court) I've got one --


REDIRECT EXAMINATION 


BY MR. RICHEY: 


Q You know, Mr. Cheek -- I'm asking this question: 


A 


Q 


A 


Q 


A 


Q 


A 


Mr. Cheek would not have tried your case, correct? 


Not to my knowledge. All he does is pleas. 


Okay. So if you had of said, "I'm going to trial," 


it would have been another lawyer assigned to the 


case? 


It would have -- it would have been Paul Neely. 


It would have been back to him? 


It would have gone back to Paul Neely. 


And -- and who told you that? 


Because I -- it's a simple fact. I --
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That -- that's the way the policy of the office 


works? 


I didn't have money -­


Yeah. 


-- to afford a lawyer. 


Right. 


25 


Judge Hayes would not let me fire Mr. Neely and try 


to find another -- try to appoint me another lawyer 


Right. 


-- so it was either take the plea with -- with Mr. 


Cheek, or go to trial with Mr. Neely and catch 


life. 


Okay. Okay. And -- and you -- and maybe you -­


you were satisfied with what Mr. Cheek told you and 


how he handled the case? 


Mr. Cheek did the best he could. 


Okay. Thank you. 


MR. RICHEY: No other questions. 


THE WITNESS: I know he did. 


MR. RICHEY: 


you. 


(To the witness) Okay. Thank 


THE COURT: Mr. Ray? 


MR. RAY: Nothing further from this witness, 


Your Honor. 
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THE COURT: All right. Sir, you may step 


down. 


(WHEREUPON, the witness was excused.) 


MR. RICHEY: Call Mr. Cheek. 


(Whereupon, the witness is sworn in.) 


THE COURT: Good morning, Mr. Cheek. 


THE WITNESS: Good morning, Your Honor. 
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State your name, please? 


James Arthur Cheek. 


And -- and, Mr. Cheek, you've been practicing 


criminal law in Spartanburg for a number of years, 


correct? 


Yes. For 40 years. 


Okay. And you -- you recall representing Mr. 


Wright, just the substance of it? 


I have in this matter, as well as matters prior to 


this. 


Okay. And you -- you heard the testimony, he said 


that you done a good job representing him, is 


and I'm sure you would agree with that, right? 


To some extent. 


Okay. 


I wouldn't have used the word "good"; I'd use the 
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word ''excellent. 11 


Okay. 


But I do understand his use of term "good.'' We're 


friends and he understands that. 


Okay. When when you got his case, you heard all 


the stuff about Mr. Neely and him. Did he discuss 


any of that with you, or is that --


I was aware of all of that, which is how I actually 


got involved. 


Okay. 


Because I could see that the relationship had 


become toxic between himself and his attorney. 


Okay. 


I, also, was well aware of the policy of the public 


defender's office as far as changing attorneys. 


Right. 


And I, also, knew from my involvement with the case 


and inquired even prior to the final breakup 


between himself and Mr. Neely, I had that 


conversation with Mr. Spenser Smith, as well as 


Paul Neely, trying to repair some of the damage and 


do some advocacy for Mr. Wright, whom I have a 


great deal of compassion, concern, and respect. 


And so you had a -- you had a prior previous 


relationship with him prior to this case, in terms 
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of representing him or something to that extent? 


I did. 


Okay. And so you got into -- you got into the 


thing, and you tried to calm the waters; is that 


what you did? 


Absolutely. 


28 


Okay. And -- and when you did that, tell me about 


your conversations with Mr. Wright in terms of 


plea, and did -- did he say, ''No. I don't want to 


plea, I'm mad." 


And you just calmed him down, and said, ''This 


will be in your best interest.'' What were those 


conversations about? 


I explained to him meaning Mr. Wright, the 


position I thought the State was taking regarding 


any future offers in his case. Mr. Wright did not 


enjoy a very good relationship or a degree of 


respect with any of the solicitor's office because 


of his first time with them having prosecuted him. 


And Spenser Smith had taken a stand that, ''This is 


the final offer. If he wants to go to trial; he'll 


go to trial. And I will try him for this, and 


I'll, also, investigate, possibly" -- some of the 


conversations that he had with his codefendant and 


the reason why he went to that house -- the first 
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house to start with --


Uh-huh. 


-- was that he would get drugs to replace -- or be 


compensated for missing drugs. That's also a crime 


and that's where we found ourselves. 


The first house they went to was the one they 


knew, so when they had had -- he and the 


codefendant had had prior relationships with them 


and exchanges and the purchase of drugs, exchange 


of drugs, and probably receiving some item that was 


not consistent with the quality that they expected 


when they had prior interactions with that 


individual. That is a crime. And his codefendant 


was definitely throwing him under the bus, and she 


was looking out for herself. And I really felt 


that that was not fair to him because she was going 


to do all she could to protect herself, and get 


herself in a position where she didn't care about 


the person who had looked out for her time and 


time, again. She's going to walk away from him, 


and do the best she could to protect herself. 


So does -- does he express to you that he wanted a 


jury trial? 


No. He did not. 


Okay. He didn't. 
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He asked me to do the best I could in trying to 


preserve his freedom to whatever extent I could. 


Okay. 


The best deal I could get for him. 


30 


And he basically told you to do what he said, "Just 


do the best you can, and I'll just take what you 


get,'' correct? Is that --


That's the understanding I had. 


Okay. And so this plea then involuntary, you 


didn't do any -- did you do anything to force or 


threaten him to plead guilty once you got it? 


Not to my knowledge. Nothing that I would consider 


-- in fact, I -- I have been practicing law for 40 


years and doing this job for 17 years, and I often 


hear people say that I either threw them under the 


bus or tried to force them to do something, but 


that's really some behaviors that I don't know if 


I'm -- if I'm doing that, it's never brought to my 


attention by anyone that I forced them to do 


anything with their lives because I try to impress 


upon my clients that this is their life, their 


decision, their future, and I respect anybody to go 


to make their own decision about how they fashion 


or form their journey from this point on. 


And what your role -- is your role that you 
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accepted if somebody didn't want to plea, you just 


give them back to the other lawyer, correct? 


Gladly. Gladly. 


Okay. Okay. And so you do -- you do -- you -- you 


were aware there's some tension between him and the 


previous lawyer, correct? 


Tension between himself, previous lawyer -­


Yes, sir. 


-- and the prosecution. 


Thank you. 


11 THE COURT: Mr. Ray? 


12 CROSS-EXAMINATION 
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Mr. Cheek, how are you? 


I'm doing well. Thank you. 


So when did you first take over this case for Mr. 


Neely? 


Well, I need to explain clearly what my position is 


with the public defender's office. I don't take 


over the cases, I'm supposed to work in 


coordination with the attorneys. In fact, I can't 


touch a case unless the other attorney says, ''Go 


ahead and talk to my client." 


Mr. Neely was still his attorney, and I 


probably interjected myself into it because I could 
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see there was being a breakdown and Spenser Smith 


was definitely not going to offer any better offer 


and was talking about investigating any other 


avenues that he had. I -- I felt like Mr. Wright 


had associated himself with a person that in the 


common vernacular is called a "snitch," and that 


she was going tell everything she knew, as well as 


some things other than what he was already under 


the investigation for and prosecution. And I had 


to intercede to do all I could to make sure it was 


stopped -- all of that, and understanding that if 


we go ahead and took a guilty plea now, there would 


be no further matters coming forward. 


And I didn't share all that with Mr. Wright, I 


didn't tell him that because I also didn't feel the 


need to -- not put his codefendant in a position 


where he could come back later on and retaliate 


against her. I -- and I only say it today because 


I think it's important that we resolve all of this 


right here, right now, as much as we possibly can 


and -- and seek some kind of peace in all this. 


Okay. And so when you did come to be involved with 


this case, did you have the discovery 


Yes. 


-- materials? And did you review that with Mr. 
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Wright? 


Yes. 


And were you aware of Mr. Neely going over that 


stuff with Mr. Wright? 


Absolutely. 


Okay. Was there any other sort of investigation 


that you did into this case? 


I don't understand your question. 


33 


Beyond just reviewing the discovery materials, were 


there any other witnesses that you may have 


contacted or anything like that might have been 


done? 


I didn't talk to the primary witnesses, meaning the 


lady who was in the vehicle or the gentleman that 


witnessed what happened on the street out there 


that night. I didn't go to the house of the 


gentleman who -- whose house was entered by Mr. 


Wright where the children had gone one location to 


the other location. 


And I -- and I was impressed to be able to say 


that I did believe him when he went over to the 


second location where the -- where the mother of 


the children from the first location had retreated, 


gone over there seeking some kind of shelter for 


herself and her children. And he had learned they 
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were over, and he went over to that house, but part 


of the problem was when he went in, he still had a 


gun that he was pointing or presenting in his hand, 


not to cause, I think, any harm, but he still had a 


gun when he went in that -- that location. All 


that was terrible; it would be terrible at trial. 


Okay. And Mr. Wright was made aware of all this? 


Yes. 


And he was aware that he had the right to go to 


trial? 


Yes. 


Did you have any discussions about how -- of the 


fact that he didn't have to plead guilty? 


Yes. That -- that was the initial conversation, 


you know, that was, "You don't have to plead 


guilty, but if you don't, you're -- we're going to 


trial on these charges. Why don't you give me a 


chance to go in front of Judge Knie and argue the 


best I can to cut your losses, because right now if 


Spenser Smith takes this offer off the table for 


domestic -- for burglary in the second degree, 


violent, you hit it with some serious charges. The 


least you can get is 15 years to life.'' 


And -- but everything that his codefendant was 


saying, when they went to the first location, they 
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went to settle a score with weapons in their hands, 


and to go to the locations with weapons in their 


hands to settle a score, that don't usually mean 


that you are going in there to have a quiet 


pleasant conversation or to offer more money to get 


compensated or reimbursed for drugs that you got 


previously and you were shorted in some way. That 


doesn't look good. I don't think many jurors are 


going to go along with that you came in there 


for -- for a session of entertainment, tea, or a 


quiet conversation. I don't believe a jury would 


believe that. 


Okay. Now, did he understand that? 


It was my impression that he understood that. 


Okay. 


Our conversation, I would move forward our 


preparation for going into the courtroom to take 


care of all this, gave me the impression that Mr. 


Wright fully appreciated that I was giving him good 


advice and that his situation would not look good 


at trial. 


Okay. Now, did he ask you questions about the 


process of entering a guilty plea? 


Yeah. Each time I've represented him he's asked me 


questions, I've answered them, you know, our first 
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time I went to court with him. And -- and we just 


reiterated and talked about the things we've talked 


in the past, and -- and the things about him that I 


thought would be something I could present to the 


Court to impress the Court that he was a person who 


deserved some type of leniency in sentencing. 


Okay. 


MR. RAY: The Court's indulgence for just one 


moment, Your Honor. 


THE COURT: Yes, sir. 


Did he ever mention to you, Mr. Cheek, things that 


he may want to be investigated further before his 


plea? 


No. 


No? Okay. Were you aware of any reservations that 


he may have had about the evidence against him, or 


The one thing that we did not have, that I'm not 


sure existed at that point in time, was the actual 


written memorandum or reduction in writing of his 


codefendant which was asked for. This snitching on 


him about -- but other than that, that's the only 


thing we wouldn't have had. 


Okay. Was there an understanding about what she 


was going to say, even though you didn't have 
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There was an understanding it was conversations 


that his codefendant was clearly out for herself. 


Okay. 
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MR. RAY: No further questions, Your Honor. 


THE COURT: Mr. Cheek, just one question. I 


understand that the relationship between Mr. 


Neely and Mr. Wright broke down, they was not 


getting along. But in your opinion as a 


lawyer, was Mr. Neely's representation 


ineffective or -- or inappropriate in any way? 


THE WITNESS: It's my opinion that Your 


Honor, that Mr. Neely had given at least a 


hundred percent preparation in this matter and 


given good advice and been advocating for Mr. 


Wright all along. And there was nothing 


deficient in his representation. I just think 


that the personalities clashed, and I didn't 


want to see Mr. Wright fall short of good and, 


I think, competent representation in this 


matter. Even if he would have gone to trial, 


I think Mr. Neely would have done all he could 


in the most professional way to represent Mr. 


Wright at trial. There was really nothing 


that Mr. Wright was saying to Mr. Neely that I 
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felt was going to be impacting enough at trial 


that a jury would most probably find him not 


guilty. 


THE COURT: Thank you, sir. 


questions for this witness? 


(To Mr. Ray) Any 


MR. RAY: Nothing further from the State. 


THE COURT: Mr. Richey? 


MR. RICHEY: Nothing, Your Honor. 


THE COURT: (To the witness) Thank you. 


THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Honor. 


MR. RICHEY: No more questions. I don't have 


any objection to Mr. Cheek being released. 


THE COURT: Okay. 


objection? 


(To Mr. Ray) Any 


MR. RAY: No, Your Honor. No objections. 


THE COURT: Mr. Cheek, you're released, if 


if you'd like you -- of course, you're 


welcomed to stay. 


THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Honor. 


(WHEREUPON, the witness was excused.) 


CLOSING ARGUMENTS 


MR. RICHEY: Judge, my client's position in 


this case is that he -- he -- him and Mr. 


Neely had as Mr. Cheek characterized a 


"toxic" relationship, they were not going to 
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get along. And he -- if he wanted to go to 


trial that -- in his mind, that was the only 


lawyer that he was going to have. So it's his 


position that his plea was involuntary because 


he felt like that he could not go back to Mr. 


Neely and have Mr. Neely try the case because 


that the relationship was so poor. 


You know, and -- and I've talked to him 


about Cheek and the -- the role that that 


plays in the whole thing, but that's his 


position that the plea was involuntary because 


he -- he could not get along with Neely enough 


to try the case through Neely. Thank you, 


Your Honor. 


THE COURT: Yes, sir. Mr. Ray? 


CLOSING ARGUMENTS 


MR. RAY: Your Honor, you're certainly 


entitled to an attorney; you're not entitled 


to whichever attorney you may want. Mr. -­


Mr. Wright was represented by Mr. Neely first, 


and then Mr. Cheek second. He says he has no 


complaints with Mr. Cheek. It seems like the 


only issue with Mr. Neely is that they had a 


tense relationship with each other due to 


personality differences or -- nothing related 
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to his performance. 


And Mr. Wright stated that he wouldn't 


have pled with Mr. Neely, which sounds like 


40 


he -- he certainly said he would have pled 


with Mr. -- with Mr. Cheek, and he did plead 


with Mr. Cheek. It doesn't sound like there 


was much of an intention to take him up on the 


trial. And then just given the fact that he 


has no complaints with the attorney who stood 


there with him, at his side, at the plea 


hearing, I don't see how this could be 


ineffective assistance of counsel. 


And then on the issue of the 


involuntariness of the plea, the plea colloquy 


-- excuse me -- the plea colloquy is clear 


that he understood what he was doing. He 


entered his plea freely and voluntarily with 


the advice of very competent counsel who I 


would agree did a excellent job on this case. 


And so we would ask that this matter be 


dismissed and post-conviction relief be denied 


for failure to meet his burden of proof. 


THE COURT: I'll take this matter under 


advisement. 


MR. RICHEY: Thanks, Your Honor. 
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(Whereupon the within hearing was 


concluded at 11:29 a.m.) 
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(*This transcript may contain quoted material. 


Such material is reproduced as read or quoted 


by the speaker.) 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 


COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG 
CERTIFICATE 


Be it known that Amber J. Payne took the 
foregoing proceeding and hereby attests: 


that I was then and there a notary public in and 
for the State of South Carolina-at-large; 


that the witnesses were first duly sworn to 
testify to the truth, the whole truth, and nothing 
but the truth, concerning the matter in the 
controversy aforesaid; 


that the foregoing transcript represents a true, 
accurate, and complete transcription of the testimony 
so given at the time and place aforesaid to the best 
of my skill and ability; 


that I am neither a relative nor an employee of 
any of the parties hereto, nor of any attorney or 
counsel employed by the parties hereto, nor 
interested in the outcome of this action; 


that, if a recording of an event was supplied by 
another party for purposes of transcription and I was 
not present during that event, the foregoing pages 
were transcribed to the best of my skill and ability; 
additionally, any identifications of speakers were 
provided to me by the party supplying the recording; 


that, in the event of a nonappearance by the 
witness, the foregoing details for the nonappearance 
are accurate. 


In witness thereof, I have hereunto affixed my 
signature and title. 


Amber J. Payne, CVR 


Date: 2/26/2022 
Notary public for South Carolina 
My commission expires August 12, 2029 
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STATE OF SOUTHCAR0LINA 
C.0UNT'f OF SPARTAN!ll.fRO 


Douglas Wright,SCDCNo. 336546 


Applicant, 


V. 


State of South Carolina 


Respqndent. 


) 
) 
} 
) 
) 
) 
J 


~ 
) 
) 
) 


IN THE C0URT0F C0MM0NPLEAS 
F0RTIIE SEVENTH JlJ.DlCIAL CIRCUrr 


Case No, 2020-CP-42-02659 


ORDER OF DISMISSAI, ~ 
c::, 


~ 
I 


CJ' 


This matter comes before the Court l)Y .,yay or Applicant Douglas Wright's August 10, 


2020 application for posi-.convictfon relief; Respond¢oJ ,nade its return on January 7, 2021, 


moving ·for a 1Uore definiie s,hitemeht and requesting an evidcntlruy hearing. An ¢vidcnt_iary 


hearin$ convened on September I 7, 2021, at the Spartanburg Count)' Courthouse in Spartattburg, 


South Carolina, Applicant was-present at the hearing and rcpres¢nted by Attorney Rodney Richey. 


·Assistant Attorney Gcneml William lL Ray, of the·South Carol,ina Attomey General's Office, 


represented Respondent. 


Applicant testified oh, his 0'!,11 behalf at the hearing. Applicant's pica conasel, Attorney 


James Cheek, also testified. The Court had before it Applicant's records from the· South Carolina 


Dcpartlnent qf Correctlon~, the,·$parfonQurg Count;1 (?Jerk of Courf s records► 11 copy-of thq original 


plea transcript, and the.pleadings, Tht:-Court·h{ls ri;viewed the.record and ple:ndings, observed .the 


wit.11esses and heard ilieir testimony, ~nd finds as follows: 


L PROCEDURAL HISTORY 


Applicant is presently clinfinect in, the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant 


to orders of commitment from the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court. During its February 2019 


tern,, the Spartanburg County Gmnd Jury indicted Applicant for possession of a fireann or 
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ammunition by person convicted ofa violent crime (2019-GS-42-1336),. first degree burglary 


(count one) and possession of a weapon during a vjolme crime (count two) (2019-GS-42-1337), 


petit larceny (2.0J9°GS-42-l338), carjacking ,(coilm one) and possession of a weapon durinw,1 


violenrcrirne (count. two) (20 l9,GS 042-l451),. and tirst degree as$nult and battery (2019-GS-42• . 


.1452). Applicant was represented by James Check, Esquire, AssistuntSolfoitor Spenser H. Smith 


o-f the ·seventh, Circuit Solicltoris Office-prosecuted· the. ca~e. 911 Se_ptein,bt)r 9, ·2019) .Applic_ant 


appeared before the Honorable Grace G. Knie, circuit courtjhdge, and.pied guilty as indicted, with 


the exception oftbe first degree b(trglary charge, which he pled to the lesser included offense of 


second degree violent burglary; the· only recomq1endatitm i11 the ~a§C was Concurrent sentencing. 


Judge l(nic sentenced Applicant. t() twenty years' imprisonment. suspended upon servfoe,-of ten 


upon ten years\service, for second'degree bu;glary, ten years for petit larceny, Jen years lCJti!ssault 
. . ' . . -~ '•'0 


::--,.1- :.z,,c 
and battery~ and ·five ye~s for the thn;c remallllng-we._aponS possC$$ion charges, scntences~nnWf:·. 


C') 0 • 


toncurrcntly. Applicant did not pursue'a direct appeaL &, 


n. FAC'l'UAL HISTORY ~ c,·;,. 
\D ~:_:;;; 


On September 11, 201 S, the police recei.ved a cull concerning a woman, Ms. Pai"~-, 


driving down t.he road.and came acr,,ss Applicant and his co-defendant, Jennifer Dillard, in.the 


middle of the road, blockingthe way. (Tr. 21:22), Pace sloweddowrt and Applicant began yelling 


at her to stop and l\el outof:the car. (Tr. 22). Applicai1t pulled out a gun and p0inted it at Pace. 


Dillard screamed "you don 'l want \o do that" and pulled out a gun. (Tr. 22). Pace put !\er car in 


reverse. and began backing up. (Tr, 22). 


A driver operating their carinthe opposite June witnessed this and called 9'! L (Tr. 22). ·n,e 


witness stated they s_awlhe rnan fire t\,_,,o to three shots in. the·air and then both•individuafs-stash 
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the pistols.(Tr: 22). 


Another incident happened tha! night conccming the two co-defendanis. (Tr. 22). Here, 


there was a home invasion of a ,veed de'llcr who allegedly owed Applicant dings. /Tr. 22). 


Applicant.and Dillard w<1nt to the hous¢ to "Settle [th¢] score." (Tr. 22). Applicant and Pillard may 


bave' Qeen ·1et-in-Undet th¢•gt1ise o_f buyi~g marijuun~ but at some-point it turned· to pistols being 


d.mwn and Applicant·and. D_iBard' attempting to ·get money Ji-om the male·o,ccupant ot'the house~ 


(Tr. 22-23). 


A femal.e and her children were in the ho11se atlhe time. (Tr. 23). At this, they mn out of 


the house tothe !\ext doonieighbor's. (Tr. 2.3). Applicantwent alter thent With a pistol and knocked 


On the neighbor'., house. (Tr. 23) .. Applicant claimed he was not tl')'ing tQ scare the cJiildren, but 


claimed .he Was.'liOt·expectiri'g tliem at.the house· at the time and wanted to· apologize. ('fr. 23)~ 


Applicant lvas met in the foyer by Mr. Pierson, the victim. (Tr. 23). Applicant stated he, wi1n(ed 


not apologize and <lid no( want to scare them. (Tr. 23). Applicant was anned with a pistoi. (Tr. 23): 


The petit larceny charge stems from a man, Mr. Clary, that let them stay at his place .. (Tr. 


23). Clary made.it back to his house and noticed some.of his belongings were taken,includiitg two 
N !;0 


handguns used in the case, (Tl:. 23). Both co-defendants gave incrimil,atingstatements NllpofJl!<;,, 


(Tr. 24}. 


m. CURRENT APPLICATION 


;01""' 


~ ;r:;~-:: . :::~~ 
o, . 


"" ::,: 


ln his pm 1e PClUpplication, Applicant alleges he is detained unlawfully for the'!? ,,.. 
fQUoWlng. r~a~om, (exc~fpts -vcfbati~): "' 


I, •·Jneffectiv~·assistance ofcounseJ. '' 
a. "I dismiss[ed] my public defendant at a hearing, the Judge force[d] the attorney 


?n me~ I di?·-not:want the pubHc defeni;ier's.pffice. to.represeot mif' 
b. "[]1hc [public defender's] offfce did.no[i] investigat[e] I] my case, look at the 


charges stack[edj on me:" 
c. "[My] co,defendant lied about lhe c,ise, my.attorney never talkl.ed] to her."' 
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d. "After t·tried to dismiSS,my attorney, th~y violated my coristitutionaf rights, I was 
pressure[d] by my attorney an.d the public defond[cr's] office." 


At' t~e evidentfary hearing Appl_icp.nt's,cqonse,l stated that he was pmceeding.fon~a(d Qn 


the following.allegations: 


1. [nefiectiVe asslstUtlce of counsel 
a. Failure to inves(igate 
b. Involuntary plea be.cause /\pplicant was forced into entering the plea. 


IV, FINDINGS.OF!"AC:T AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 


Tliis. Court has reviev,red the -tC:S:timony presentc:(i_ at the evidentiary h¢tjring') o~served the 


\'fitnesses. pre.scnted -at the· hearing; _·passed upqn th~ir credibility, and we_i;ghed the -testiin0:ny 


accordingly. F1,Jrthcr, this Court has review_ed the- records submiw.'-d to it by the parties and· the 


legal arguments made by 1!1e attorneys. Pom1unt kS.C. Co.de Anrt. § 17-27~80, this Court makes 


ihe fo)lowing findings .based upon all of the probative evidcncc,prcsented. 


!11effectiw1 A:isistance of Com,sel 


Applicant's allegatioru, of ineffective assistance of counsel arc without merit. In a PC!{ 


aetiOnt App!ican(bears the burden of provil'lg,the allegati_on~ in his/her' application. Butler v .. Star~. 


286 S.C. 441, 334•8.Ec2d 813 (1985). Where the application alleges ineffective assislllnce of 


counsel as a ground for relief, _Applic_allt must prove that •·•counsd's- CQoduct so yndennirtcd the· 


proper fimctiorting ofthe:adversarial process that [it] cannot be relied upon as having produced a 


just• result." fNrickland ~. fVqshinglon, 466. U.S. 668, 686 (I 984); Buth?·, 286 S.C. .~4:S~?4 
":tJr··· 


S.E.2d at 814. ~ <'.;' 
J ',,., w , 


In evaluating aUegatiohs-of ineffective asisistance of ~unset, the reviewin_g co~ a,Rg11e;. 
, ' ~- :·.:~";,'. 


the t\v.q'--prol1ged test outlhic~fin Srricklwu{; First, Applica:ntmust"prove that COU)lScl's pootornf~ee\ .. ~;; ·-' ,,. --
was deficient. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686.: Cherry v. &ate, 30.0 S.C. ! IS,. 117, 384 S~.2d~624, 


625 (1989). Applicant must so prov¢ his factual allegations by a preponderance of the .evidence. 
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Rule 71.l(e), SCRCP. Under this prong, the court measures an attorney's performa11ce by its 


"reasonableness under prevailing profeMional nonns;" Chen:v. 300 S.C. tit 117, ,86 S.E.2d.at 625 


(quotlngStricklai,d, 46.6 U.S. at 690). Thepropet.riwasure ofperfonnanceiswhethenhe auorn~y 


provided representaiion withiil the range Of Cbni.pctenCe required· in- criminal ·cases._ Bllllf!r, 286 


S.C. at 442, 334 S.E.2dat'8!4. '•Counsel is strongly presumed to have rendered adequate assistaµce 


and made ail-sig:nt'ficant·debisions-i'n the exercise ofreasona,blc profess_ipnal judgment.'' I,j.. (citing 


Sttic.'klanfl., 466-U,S. ut 990}.c "When ·counsei focuses-.Oli some iSm.1es to the ex91usfon Of Others, 


the_re iS.a stron,1fpres\1mption 'that he. [or shCJ :did so for facti~i reasons _rather.than through sheer 


neglect .. '' .Yarborough R Gentry, 546 U.S. i, S (2003) (citing :strick/and, 466 U.S. at 690). The 


:court, fn. detennfoing defici¢ncy1 mu,st afftrina{iw1y entertafo the range of possible reasons 


coun.sel may have had for proceeding as they did. Citllen.v, Pinhol.,ier, 563 D.S. 170, 196 (201,J); 


l{(lrri11g1im v. Rich/er, 562 U.S. 86, 109-1 Q (2011). ''[E]ven .if an omission is inMvertent, reliefis: 


not aotoinotit;. '.Tiic·Sixth Amendment guarantCC-:S·reasonable Competence, no,t perfecfadyoQri.c)' 


judged with the benefit:ofhindsight.'' Yarborough, 540 U.S. at 6; see ,!/so M11rphy v. Da,•is, 901 


F.3d.578, S:92 (5th Cir. 201 S) ("[C]oun.se('s perfornmnc¢ need not be optimal tq bereaso~le.1t!, 
. - -- ;;_ S.r? 


Applicant.musi.overcome this presumption to rc¢eive:rellef. Cherry, 300 S.C.at118, 38~.lli-1W· 


at 625. 
l " ,;'.· 


,:,, ;:: '. 
:~: ,: 


~ d- .. -
.See011<l, counsel's de6cient perfonnance must have prejudiced Applicant such tl•>f''tf,eti( · 


;... 1;;·:::_: 
is a,rcasonabie probability that, bui for counsel's unprofessional errors; the result ofihe p~ceeaJng 


would have been different." Cherry, 300 S.C. lit 117-18,.386 S.E.2d at .625. "This does not require 


a showing that counsel's actions 'more likely thah not altered the outconie,' but ihe difference 


between Strickland's prejudice stan<)ard and a more-probable-than-not standard is slight and 


matters 'only in the rarest case.'" Harri11gton, 562 U.S. at 111-12 (quoting,\'/rick[and, '466 U.S: qt 
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697). "The likelihood-of a different result musi be substantinl, notjust ~onceivable . ." Id. at 112. 


"Th.c ptejudiceanhlysisxe.qiiiresthe court deciding the ineffectiveness clafrn to-conside_rthe t_otality 


of the evidence before.the judge or jury.•' /!,1/ted S(atesv. Basham, 789 F.3d 358, 371-72 (4th Cic 


2015) (quoting E/ili<Jt·e v. Ozmint, 661 J'.3d 783,858 (4tl1 Cir. 2011)). 


ln the context ofa ,guilty pfea, Applicant must show that there is a reasonable prol)nbility 


tha(, but for couhsel's alleged error:;:, he/she·,wtn:ild not have p'leadCd gutlty-and· wp:u!Q have hisisted 


on going to trial. Hill v. Lrgkhart, 474 U.S. 52, 59 (1985). Because a guifty plea·is a solemn, 


judicial admission of the truth Ofthc.·cJiiirges against an indi\1idtlal; the !'CR applic_dnf_s righfto 


contest the validity of such ,r plea is usually, but not invariably, 'foreclosed. See, Blackledge v. 


Allisot1, 431 U.S. 63, 73. 74 (1977).("Solemn cleclarations in openwurt carry a strong presumption 


pf verily, The subsequent' pr~cnta1fon Of toricluSocy alle&ations unsupported by specffic$ is 


subjec;t to summary di'$1ri'issal, as are contentions that in the :race .. o( -the record are wholly 


focrecHble.''). Statements· made. during a ~uilfy plea should be conside.red conclusively, unle~s-an 


Applicant presents valid reasons why'he or she shoilld be allowed to ,depart from tj1e truth ol' his 


statements. Dallon v, Sia/e, 376 S.C. 130, 137~38, 654 S_.E.2d 870, 874 '(Ct. App. 20~ (ciH~g 


Cra»fatd v. United Swrc.,, 519F'2d 347,350 (4th Cir. 1975)),J i ~~r;: 
The ·5:uuidaids do hot cstahHsh,mechanical rules~ the,-ultimatc· focus of i'riquiry m\$t bi!·:'f)t( C 


;;::» 1:°? \ '_; 
the fundamental foimess of the proceeding whose result is being ch~Ucnged. Sh'ickland, '4'66 u:f.: 


'-1? '.:~;:: 
at 696. A court need not 'first determine whe~ter counsel's . perfonm\ncc was deficieri'bbet'g;ie 


exruniriing tlle prejudice suffered by the defendant as a result ·of the alleged dcficiencieS;·..i.fit is 


easier to dispose of an ineffectiveness claim on t11e ground of lack of sufficient prejudice. that 


course should be followed. Id. at 696-97. 
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Failui'e-to /Jiw:~(igate 


Applicant cJahns th:at.his-C<>'UllsCl was ineffective for failing tff.investi,gate hi$-Casc .. This 


atJegutiqn. i:S· Without me1'.it. 


Applicant testified that he was represented by Attorney James Cheek. He had initially been 


represented by .Attorney Paul Neely, who be h:id disagreements with. He stated that he was 


uninterest~d in proceCding,f6rwar,d with.Mr. Neety,-and ·would not have:en.tcrcd.his·plea had ·Mr. 


Neely continued to represent him.J-le acknowlcdi;ed that he did enter his plea with Mr. Cheek as 


his counsel of record, and stated that cowisel did ti1e best that he could for him. ne stated that be 


met Mr .. Cheek many yeai-s prior tp Jhis case, and stilted that he respects him and the work he does. 


He-stated_ that he "initially did t19i-want to ent~r a })lea, ·and inst_eild wmlt_c_d.to gp io- trial, but 


lhat he u'ltiinatclyentered his.plea to begin the1,ro.ccss .Of.pursuing post-conviction.relief: He sta1Cd 


that it wasJiis ii tlfi time doing time, 4nd he wante!l to enter his guilty plea specifically so that.he 


could pursue'post0 conviction relict: ·confosingly, he also stated thathisMr. Neely had allowed the 


-solicitor to bully him into cntcriilg,his plea, and said that if he did not do 50 the solici~ w<l(9d 
J-J ':.'>·t""'> 


hiive thrO\vn tl1e:book.at him. He complained that his attorney did npt do enough to investii,te~t: 
c-, ',;_,.--<, 


solicHor's willingness to ·~ggressively pursn.e the rhqs:t ,SCfi~us charges ln this'case. th ;::•_,, 
> ;:·,<: 


Counsel Cheek testified that he knew of the disagreements between Mr. Nei arif:; 
~• l_:';,-- t 


Applicant; and believed that they were tl1uesult ofincompaiible personalitjes. He stated i:'iiat ii: 
represenicd Applicant for purposes ·of entering his plea after th.e reiationship witi1 Mr. Neely had 


soured. He ·obtained the plea offer iii this case, which. had previously been mctcnded through Mr. 


Neely, and which Applicant ultimately accepted. 


Cqunselswted that he received discoVeryand hoihhim and Mt. Neely had reviewed it.\\ith 


Applicant. There. was signitkant evidence against 'liirh~- includin~ witnesses who were willing to 
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testify. He Stated that Applicant neVer e;<pressed a desire "to go to ·trialt d_espite. knowing ·that he. had 


the right to do sn. Coui,seL also stated that Applicant never .indicated he. wanted anything. 


investigated furthC:r prior to the_ plea hearing. He stated that ApplieanCs l}est option was to enter 


his guilty plea. 


This Court finds that Applicant's allegations are without merit. As on initial matter, 


Applfoallt dQes·not CompiUin-oftlie performance of Attomey-Cheek.i: who \vas cqunseI ofrt..~or.d at 


the guilty plea hearing.The record and testimony sho,vs that both Cheek ond Neely received and 


reviewed. disc9very with-Applicant. The rC_t_ord sho,Vs that there was sisnificunl _evidence ~gaihst 


App!ictmt,. and he was:made a:\w.i..re-.ofihhrJact by his attorneys. ApJ)litnnt'S claim thut he wanted 


Counsel to investigaJe-. the .solicitor's. strategy: in ·haodli'ng.. lhe case is :incoherent. The Court ._can 


dfsccrn no.d_e.fidency fQt fri.Hui;e 'ttl investigate or review discovery in this matt~r. 


Furthennore, Applicant has not proven he was prejwliced by counsel's perfonnance. He 


stated that he would not plead guilty if represented by Mr, Neely, The evipenc¢ sho.ws that once 


Attorney Cheek canle- o·n to thC case he ,Vas willin·g· to enter his plea for ·a_ variety of reasous. 


Applicant' has· made. no _showing that bttt for .c:ounsel's faiHtre to prepare or invcstjgate he. ,Vould 


have proceeded to trial. Therefore, .the allegation :nust be dismissed with prejudice. 


lnvolunto,y G11llty Plea 


~ !\t 
!::· ?i:P 
~ ~-HJ! 


b ~?~.<-_. 
Applicant alleges that his plea was made involllntadly because he W'lls·forced in!ll,takifig; 


% ,._-;.\,,: 
the plea. 'll1isallegatlon is \\ithoutrnerit. '-P. 'o?,::. 


C" \'.2: _, 


To find, a guilty plc;a is voluntarily. ~.nd kriowingly emcred··int◊, the rec·o_rd fuust e'ft1abli~ 


Applicant had a full lli1dersta11ding of ilie consequences of the plea and the charges against him or 


her. Doper,,. State, 304 S.C. 433,434, 405 S.E.2d 391, )92 (1991); $Ce also Boykin v. Alab4mo, 


395 U.S, 238, 2.43 (I969)(Court.s·must hlake sttre defendants have "a full understanding.of what 
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the plea cOnncitecs· and of its _(;onsequenc_e,. When the judge discharges .tliat function, he foaves.a 


record .adequate for any reVieiv ihat may be la,tcr sought,. and ibrpstalls the·spin-Off qfcoJlateral 


proceedings that sec}( to probe-.murky .memories.~'). In determining guilty plea,iSsuCS_, it is proper 


to consid¢i the· guilty plea transcript as·Well as evidence present~ ;tt th; PCR hearing. See Harris 


v. l.eeke, 282 S.C. 131,134,318 S.ll.2d 360; ,361 (1'~84). 


An upplkant who enters a plea on the,advlce of counsel may only a!tack the vohmtary 


and intelligent character oflhc plea by sh◊wing that trial counsel'.s Nprcscntation foll below an 


obJectiVe'Standard of reasonableness, and_ that ·there is a reasonable probability that, but for trial 


counsel's, e1T01'$, the dciCndafrt wotild. riot have .pled' ,&uiity~ but would have in$istCd ort gbing.t9 


trial instead. Rosdoe ,,. Stale, 345 S.'.C. 16, 2Q, 546 ·s.llc2d 417, 419 (4001); Rithard.,•iHi v. S1a1e, 


310 S.C. 360,363, 362426 s:E,2d 795,797 (1993). 


The plea transcript shows· that. Applicant did 110.t indicate that he had been threatened .or 


coerced into taking his pica when he was prompted by the court (Tr, 12, 13-16), He explicitly 


stated that he was critedng his plea•fi·eely, knowingly, and voluntarily. (Tr. 21, l;l-15),;;.t'.he il.l,urt 
r-,,:) ):•y1 


accepted ihc plea as.bdng voluntarily made after a thorough colloquy where Applicant wiad~k~ 
('? :;.!:'.) 


\ 
of his constitution.al rights as·w¢ll"the-c·har_ges ng~inst hlm,and the ·s¢ntencing exposure. er, , .. 


;p,, ,:,-~;·,, 


Applicant.testified that he-was forced iNo taking the plea offer be<:ause he was not}owgd;/ 
•• :;;,·v" 


to fire Mr. Neely as his'fawyer; the State was going to throw the book at him at trHtl,,and Ii~our.l 


risk life in prison if he was found g11ilty at trial. He stated that he entered his plea to get it over 


\vith.;tn,d to_ pursue post•convictioil relief, 


Counsel ·testified that he explained. ihe :plea oiler :to Applicant, its terri1s; artcl 1hat it was 


final. He .stated that Applicant never expressed a.desire to go to \rial. He stated that he did not do 
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anything-fol' force Applfoant "i.nto Cntc:rlllg .his guilty plea;_ He ad.vised him_ td enter the:plea after. 


reviewing tkevWence and the offer cxiended hJ the Staie. 


This Court finds that Applicant's plea was knowingly and voluntarily entered. 'f!».<>lalmQ__ 


rlmt thC: St:ii~~as golng.tQ throw·tfie book a1Apphciim ls cilca1ly nm titc CMC ~onSidtiling the t~- lt..AJVl 
that ·be ¢»teted h.is:pica prusuaot _ta a :Plea Biler tlu1t incln.dt•.d o lesser included_ ?ffienStHm4Jl__ 


rncQm:n"lendadon for coni::Urri:nt scntcuc€.,All Of tliis•:was. made i:Iear to ~pp!icant at the. plea_ 


hearing, Applicant acknowledged the tenns of the plea agreement and indicated his uuderstanding 


ofthe "ctirtseqµences. He ~Ud'so with t_hc:advic'e of counsel. ·n1erc. is_mihing in the rcc-ord to indi'cate 


that he did not understand what lie was.doing~ Furthennorc, there is nothing in the :record to_sJ1ggest 


t}mt. Applicant would have proceeded 10- trial 'buf :fm: counscF:S p_erforn~ance h1- this regard. 


Therefore, this .Co'url finds that'the :~pplication ·tnust be:denied and dismiS_sed ,Vith.prejudice. 


IO 
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V. CONCLUSION 


Based· on all the foreg.Qing, this Court .finds and concludes that Applicant has not 


established. any.constitUtiOnal vio.lations or deprivation·s that would require this CQurt t-0 grant his 


application. therdfore, thi.1! appli<;ation for poSt•cQ,nV:iction relief must be- denied ·and <lis_m~s~ed 


with prejudice. 


This Court notifies the.Applicant that he musffile an.ct serve a notice of appeal within thirty 


(30) days from the receipt by counsel of written notice of entry of judgment to secure the 


appropriate !lj>J)ellate review. See R,_1le 203, SCACR. Pursuant to ;Justin v: State, 305 S.C. 45'.l, 


409 S.R2d 395 (1991), an Applicimt,has a right ro an·11.ppellrite counsel's assistance in seeking 


revieWofthe denial ofFCR. Rule 71.l(g);SCRCP p,ovides·thatif the Applicant wishes to seek 


appellate )·eviev.\ PCR counsel must serve and file a Notice of:Appc'al on the Applieant's bebµJf; 


Youi allention is directed to South Carolina Appel.late Court Ruic 243 for appropriate procedures 


t'orappeal 


IT JS THEREFORE ORDERED, 


L Thnt t~c Application for• Post-Co.nviction RelieJ' inust be denied and 
d1s~fssed \\ith p1'cjudicc;· and 


2. The ApplicJrnt mus\ be remanded to the custody of the.c South Carolina 
Department of COrri!di_Q:ris., ~ 


~ AND IT IS so ORDERED this 1:1_ day of,.,.,_""-ll;:,e:,c...:..:..:....=-, 


, South Carolina 


Jl 


WtLLIAM A. McKl~'NPN 
Pre_siding Judge 
Seventh Judicial Circuit 


2021. 
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• 


STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA l 
l 


COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG) 


INDICTMENT 


FEB 2 2 2019 
At a court of General Sessions, convened on _________ _. 


Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath: 


POSSESSION OF A FIREARM OR AMMUNITION BY PERSON 
CONVICTED OF A VIOLENT CRIME 


the 


- - • • 'ThaTDomJlas"-James. Wrigh\7:lia mSpartafiotir\f Counfy on or'" 


about September 11, 2018, have in his possession a handgun after 


having previously been convicted of a violent felony as defined by §16-1-


60, to wit: Manufacturing Methamphetamine, in violation of Code §16-23-


500 (A), CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, (1976), as amended. 


Against the peace .ind dignity or the State, and contrary to the statute in such case 


made and provided. 


ASi{iTANT SOLICITOR 


-.. --


.. 
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• .. 


STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA :t INOICiMENT 
:i 


COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ;, 


FEB 2 Z 2019 
Al a Court of General Sessions, convened on ______ ~ the Grand Jurors of 


Spartanburg County present upon their oath: 


BURGLARY, FIRST DEGREE 


rDWl:LLJNG) 


Thal the Defendant, Douglas James Wright, did in Spartanburg County, on or about 


■--- ....§El!llW~r JL.~1! enter !he d~ll!nJl..!oed '!t 105 _!-lol!l_ ?!r:le, ..!:¥am~!~• without _ • 
consent ana entered with lh1;1 intent to commil a ctime therein, encl that the defendant did 


white entering the dwelllng, and/or while Inside, and/or while In immediate flight from the 
dwelllng either. 


(1) ann himself with a deadly weapon; and/or 


(2) use or threaten the use ol a dangerous Instrument; and/or 


(3) displayed what was or appeared to be a handgun or o!her firearm and/or, 


(4) the defendant has !wo or more prior convictions for burglary 


In violation of Section 16-11-311, Code of Laws of South Carolina (1978) as amended. 


COUNT lWO: F)OSSESSION OF A WEAPON DURING A VIOLENT CRIME 


That Douglas James Wright, did In Spartanburg County on or about September 11, 


2018, pos11ess or visibly display a firearm or what appeared to be a firearm during the 


commission of a violent crime, to-wit: Burglary 1" Degree, In viola!lon of Code §16-23-490, 


CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
. . . ----- - -- ...., __ .. _ ·-----· ----


Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to Iha statute In such case 


made and provided. ~ o~ ~ 
ASS!TSOLICITOR 


·-
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• .. 


STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 


COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG 


INDICTMENT 


FES 2 t 2019 
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on------~ the Grand Juror,; of 


Spartanburg County p(esent upon their oath: 


BURGLARY, FIRST DEGREE 
(DWELLING) 


That the Defendant, Douglas James Wright, did In Spartanburg county, on or about 


~--_§~~~r. 1 UOtt ~~tl~lllna.Jo£3~ .1!1 105 ~ol!t_ Clr~e, Ly~~• 3?• w~lhout 
consent and enlered with the Intent to commit a crime therein, and that the defendant did 


while entering the dwelling, and/or while Inside. and/or while In Immediate flight from the 


dwelling either: 


(1) enn himself with a deadly weapon; and/or 


(2) use or threaten the use of a dangerous instrumenl; andlor 


(3) displayed what was or appeared to be a handgun or other firearm and/or, 


(4) the defendant has two or more prior convictions for burglary 


in violation of Section 16-11-311, Code of Laws of South carolina (1976) as amended. 


COUNT TWO: POSSESSION OF A WEAPON DURING A VIOLENT CRIME 


That Douglas James Wright, did tn Spartanburg County on or about September 11, 


2018, possess or visibly display a firearm or what appeared to be a firearm during the 


commission of a violent crime, to-wit: Burglary 1" Degree, In violation of Coc:le §16-23-490, 


CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 


. ... ,, •-.... --. .. - -- - .... - .. --- -- -.. -- - . 


Against the peace ancl dignity of the State, and contrary to the staluta in such case 


made and provided. 


11,r~ ASSINTS0~1CITOR 


- ·--
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 


COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG) 


INDICTMENT 


At a Court of General Sessions, convened on _______ F=EB'-'2'--2 .... Z-"01"""9 _ __. 


Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon !heir oath: 


PETIT LARCENY 


the 


That Defendant, Douglas James Wright, did in Spartanburg 


--C'ouhly-on·'ofa6ouTSepternberl'1, 2"018, felon'ious~y take and carry aw;_:;·· -· - ~ 


the personal goods of Eric Clary, valued at less than Two Thousand 


Dollars, described as follows: Two handguns and/or miscellaneous items, 


with the intent to deprive the owner permanently of such property, in 


violation of §16·13-30 (A) and §16-1-57, THE CODE OF LAWS OF 


SOUTH CAROLINA, (1976), as amended. 


Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case 


made and provided. 


~· J2.w ASSANT SOLICITOR __ _._._ - ~- .... ·-- .. -.. 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 


COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG) 


INDICTMENT 


At a Court of General Sesslon4, convened on ____ __.F.,.E .... 6..,_2.,.2.,.20 .. 19.__ _ _. 


Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath: 


COUNT ONE: CARJACKING 


the 


That Douglas James Wright, did in Spartanburg County on or about September 


14; 204 &;-take; or-•attempt-to-take,-&-fflotoF--11et:iiele-by-force-<111d--violenE1e-and/oF-by- -· 


intimidation while the victim, Cindy Pace, was operating the vehicle and/or was in the 


vehicle, In violation of §16·3-1075 (B) (1), CODE OF LAW'S OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 


(1976}, as amended. 


COUNT TWO: POSSESSION OF A WEA?ON DURING A VIOLENt CRIME 


That Douglas James Wright, did in Spartanburg County on or about September 11, 


2018, possess or visibly display a firearm during the commissi'on of a violent crime, to­


wit: CARJACKING, in violation of Code §16·23-490, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH 


CAROLINA, (1976), as amended. 


Against the peace and dignity of the Stale, and contrary to the statute in such case 


made and provided. 11 I 


-~ ----- - - ------~-~~~~~~~::::::.. __ _ 
ASSI R 
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STATE OF SOIJTH CAROLINA ) 
.) 


COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) 


INDICTMENT 


Al a Court of General Sessions, eonvened on ____ __,_F..._E.,_ll ..._2 ... z ,..10.,.19.__ _ _. 


Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County pl'esent upon their oath: 


COUNT ONE: CARJACKING 


the 


That Douglas James Wright, did in Spartanburg County on or about September 


11, 2018;-take;-or--attempHo-take.~otoF-VehielMy-fotea-and-violenee-and/oF-by--­


Intimidation while the victim, Cindy Pace, was operating the vehicle and/or was in the 


vehicle, in violation of §16-3-1075 (B) (1), CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 


(1976), as amended. 


COUNT TWO: POSSESSION O!= A WEAPON DURING A VIOLENT CRIME 


That Douglas James Wright, did in Spartanburg County on or about September 11, 


2018, possess or visibly display a firearm during the commission of a violent crime, to­


wit: CARJACKING, In violation of Code §16-23-490, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH 


CAROLINA, (1976), as amended. 


Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute In such case 


made and pl'0vided. I"} vL 
----~-- --·- _.....,.. ___ -- £ --~ 


ASSrNT SOLICITOR 
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.. 


STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT 
) 


COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG :, 


FEB 2 2 2019 
At a Court of General Sessions, convened en __________ _. the 


' Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon lhafr oath: 


ASSAULT AND BATTERY 16t Degree 


That the Defendan1, Douglas James Wright, did in Spartanburg County on or about 


-· - - -Septembel'""l+,--2848-cemmil--a!Wlssaull-and- battery-- e11 •the--vio!im, Cindy Pace, ey­
unlawfully, 


(a) offering or attempting to injure the victim with the present ability to do so, and the 


act: 


(l) is accomplished by means likely to produce great bodily injury or death, or 


(ii) occurred during the commission of a robbery, burglary, kidnapping, or 


theft, 


To wit: firing a handgun during the commission of a carjacking , in violation of §16·3-


600(C)(1}, THE= CODE OF LAW$ OF SOUTH CAROLINA, (1976), as amended. 


------~----- ---- ---•-------•-I• 


Against the peace and dignlly of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case 


made and provided. L# 
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Sl'ATEOFSO1JTHCAROLINA 


COUNTYOF 
'5TATE 


------=S;;.;PAR=T;;;'A,;,NB=~=G:;._ ____ j 
VS, ) 


-==-------.;Do=ug.,,tas=J:.::am=••:..W=ri,.ghaat_,.1.,;:-::I'i=v-'-'.'--- :i 
AKA: --------------- ) 
Race: \VH!TB Sex: M Age: -~3_0 __ ) 


DOB: -19S9 SS#: -------- :1 
Ad~~: 136 Midland Dr ) 
City,S111tc,Z1p: Bolllng Spring,, sc 293J6•SH3 ) 
DU: ...... ___ SID#: -=------- ) 
•CDLYc,□ No□ CMVYcsO No□ HamatYcs□ No□ 


IN TIIB COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 


INDICTMENT/CASE/I: _..:a20..,l.,_9G-"S-4=20..,1"'33"--'6'-------
A/W#: 201SA4210203482 
Dateo(Offcnsc: -'9'-/""11"'/l~O~IS"-, _______ _ 
S.C. Code§ 16•23•0500(A) 
CDRCode #: __ 3_43_4 _________ _ 


SENTENCE SHEE'l' 


In dl$posilion o(lho .,.Id indictment comes now the Defendant who wos D CONVICTED OF or ~PL!!ADS 
TO: 'Po .. essioD of Fireann or Ammunition by person convicted of violent folonv (0•5vr) Rec: Concurrent 


in violation of § 16-23-0500/A) of tho S,C, Codo o(Laws, be&ing CDRCode H c:3~4=3~4---===,...,.,.. 
[lgNON•VJOLBNT □VIOLENT □ SERIOUS QMOSTSERIOUS O MandatoiyGPS(CSC O §17-25-45 


w/mfnor 1st or Lowd Act) 
~ As lndlc1cd, □Lesser Included Omtlse, ::::JDcfcndMI W4lvos Pl'C5cntmcnL Gnind Jury. (dolbnd•m•• ioitiols) -----, Thccbuicu: 


The pica· 
ATIE 


ow· ou~ Neg 1i1tions or Rccommendot~O Negotlaicd Sentc ation by tho St&te, 


SC101370 7..Y__ ~ ~ 
1TH, PBNSER H SC Bar# Defendant Neely, Poul K. SC Bu~ 


Aaomey for Dcfom!m,t 
WHERBl'ORE, the Defendant Is co111111iled lo the ~ Stale Department of Corrections, 0 Coun11 Detonllon Center, 
for• dotenninacc term of 5 day!lmont~ ;:) undu Ibo Youthful Offender Aet not to exceed ___ years 
end/or to pay• fine of$---,,--~: provided thnt upon tho scrvtco of ______ days/montlw)'ellrs And/or peymcnc 
ofS • plUJ costs 1111d assessments os nppl!eablc•; the balance lJ suspended with probation for ,---,,-,--,--,--,-­
months/years ond .ubjcct to South Corllllria Dtpar1mcnt of Probation, Parole IU1d Pardon Scrvlces stand1,rd conditloos of probulon, 
whlfe are incorporated by refercnee. 
0'CONCURRENT or O CONSECUTIVE to acntence on: 


~ Defend11111 is to bo given credit for limo served pw-,uant to S.C. Code §24•13-'I0 co be calcula!cd and applied by SCDOC. 


□Tho Dcfcndlll.l is lo bcplaeod on tho Central Registry of Child Abuso imd Neglect pmuanlto S.C. Codo §17-25-13$. 
Punuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,11 ls unlawful fora penoi, co11vlcl£<! ora vlollillon or Secllon 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Domestic 
Vlolonce) to ship, tronsport, pos,w, or receive• lircorm or ammunition. 


SPECIAL CONDmONS: 
0 RES11TUTION1 Ooererred O»,r. W•lv11 l!c1rl•B O0nl•rtd PTUI' 


To!lll: S _____ plus 20% fco: ___ $ ----
PaymcntTcm1.1: _______________ _ 


____ d~ows PubUo Service l!mptoymcnl 


Ob1ain OED :J 
0 Set by SCDP'PPS 


Recipient 


•Fine: 
§14-1-201i (Assclffllenls IOM %) 
§14•1•21 l(AXI) (Conv. S~) 
§ I ◄-t •211 (AX2) (DUI Surchoti:e) 
§56•5-299S (DUI A<sets....,1) 
§56-1-286 (DUlllrooth Tts1) 
Proviso (Publlo t>el1Probation) 
§ 14-1-212 (Law&ft>r<:o. Funding) 
§14· 1-213 (Onig Court Su~e) 
§SMM ! ◄(BUI BrcathTcsl Pee) 
§S6-S"2942(J) (Veblclc Assc,sment) 
3% io Co uni)' (if paid in inslllllments) 


Attc:nd Voe. Rehab. or Job Corp. 
Moy servo W/B bogining 
Subs~ Abu$o Counseling D 


S R111dorn Dnrg/Alcobol resting 0 
$ Fino may bo pd. in equal, coosccu1ivc wceklyimoud1Jy 


$100 $ AY}dl p~. of$ ____ boginnlo& 
s100 s' $ll $ $ ____ paid to Public Defender Pund K 
:~o ~ 0th


~ ~~fttd<G&:l= 
~~o p.o ,~,~ 
$50 $ ~ .. \~\' 


SJ; 'if'. . · ~ Proviso requirca $500 be paid to Clerk 
$40/ .. _S==-=-~---~id;_>.ipointed PP or appointod other oounscl, 


..=,.....,,;_ __ -1 during prob•tion and shall be collected before 


TOTAL S /dj 2< 1111)' olhor fees. ~ ~-• 


~ Presidin& Judge ; 
Clc11<:ofCoun/ oq,,u~ Clctl: 1.??4--------- Judge Codo: 'ZJ7"'"': 
CourtRcpo11er. • ...,4,</.J.-'14Jb~ll/.~1U'/...:.____________ Sentence Date: __ q..,_'--'-.._[,__. ________ _ 


SCCN.117 (04/2018) 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 


~ 
) 


==--------'D"-o::.:u,.ge.:las=1m:::n::•=.•..:;Wc:.r,.ii:J>;9 .;r.,,......,,,,_,_. __ l 
AKA: } 
Race: WHITS Sox: M Ago: 30 
DOB: 1939 SSII: -~-- ) 
Address: 136 Mldll!lld Dr ------ ~ 
City,Stato,Z,p: Boiling Spring,, SC 29))6-5313 ) 
DUI: SID#: _______ ) 


COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG 
STATE VS. INDlCTMllNT/CASE/1: 20l9GS4201337 


AN/I!: 20!8A42102034S3 
Dato oCOffenso: -'9"-/"'11.,.,12:::0c,.13=-----------
S.C. Codi:§ __;lc:c6-.:l.:.l ·..::03::;l:.:.I ______ _ 
CCR C<ldc II: _ _.:..00:.c7.:.9 ________ _ 


SENTENCE SHEET 


'COLYes□ No□ CMVYc,Q No□ HazmatYcs□ No□ 
In disposition oflho faid indictment comes now dio Defendant who was D CONVICTED Of' or IXJPLEADS 
TO: Bur2farv (Violent) (After 06'20/SS)- Second do~• (O.!S}r) Rec: Concurrent 


The ch•fll• ts; 
Thopl 
ATT 


(l9Lcsoer Included omon,~ 
tiations or Recommendati 


SCl01370 
SC Baril oely, Pau 


Attorney for Defendant 
WHEREFORE, the Defendant iseOlllmilcd to the ~ Stat, DepartmCIII or Corm:tloas, 0 County Detention Center, 
ror a detennLnato term or l ,5 doyJ/monlh@or O under the YoulbCul Otrondcr Act not to e eced ,,_ __ ye~rs 
ond/or to pay a lino ofS • provided that upon !he service of / 0 days/month oar~ d/or payment 
of$ • plus costs tnd assessments as applicable•; the balance i, suspended with probation for .D( ______ _ 


mont~ snbjoct to Soulh Cnrol!n& Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Sorvicos stondard conditions of probation, 
W'l)ich~-;,rated by rofercnco, 
E'.I CONCURRENT or O CONSECUTIVE to aentenco on: 


u?fhc Defendant Is to be given cn:dit tor lllno served pumant to S.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied bySCDOC. 
OTh• Defendllnt Is to bo placed on th• Cer,lral Regi<tiyoFChild Abuse and Neglect pmuant to S.C, C<>dc §17-2S-135. 
Pursuant lo 18 U.S.C Section 922,lt Is unl4wful for a pct,on convicted oh violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-2$-65 (Doiucstk 
Vlolcnee) lo ship, transport, poaw, or receive a lirnrm or anunuaition. 


SPECIAL CONDITIONS, 
0 RESTlTUTI0N: ODtrtrnd ODcr. Waives Hearlne QOrdcnd PTUP 


Total; $ _____ plus 20% fee; ___ $ 


Payment Terms: 
0 Set by SCDPPPS ____________ _ 


Recipient: 


•Fino: 
§ 14-1•206 (A,s...,mcnts 107.5 ~) 
§l4-1-2 I l(AXI )(Conv. Sutchqc) 
§14•1•211(Al{2)(DUI Surclw&c) 
§56-S-2995 (DUI A>sc&m1cnt) 
§S&-1-286 (DUI D,..U, Test) 
Prvviso (Public Def/PrOb<t!on) 
§ 14-1-212 (I.aw En for«. Fw!dlna) 
§ 14-1·213 (Dn,11 Coun Su~\l>rgc) 
§50.2l•I U(BUI Breath Test l'co) 
§S6·S·2942(J) (Vchlolo Assc:,,n:ont) 
3% to County (lfpoid In installments) 


TOTAL 


$100 
$100 
Sil 
$2S 
ssoo 
$25 
$1$0 


$ 
$ 


s 


s 
$40/ca $ ""'s,...,s_-r_?'.,r---


ClerlcofCourt/~Cll<a1d"°•-'i[:".,..':,;.;;;· .... ~---------
Court Rcpo<ter. {"...,,· -"~--~-• __________ _ 


SCCA/217 (00201!) 


____ days/hours Publio Service l!mploy,ncnr 


OblainGEO 0 
Attend Voe. Rehab. or Job Corp. 
May 1crvc W/E bcgln!ng 
Subslllnc• Abuse Counseling □ 
Random Drug/Alcohol testing ~ 
Finl: may be pd. In equal, consecutive weekly/monlhly 
~. of S ____ be&inning 


S __ ...,.,._ blic DcfCl).dcr und 
v, Othe..--


D Appointed PD or appointed othor counsel. 
Promo tcquircs $SOO be paid 10 Clerk 
during prabnlion and :ban be collected bcfo~ 


any other ~es. I~ , 
Prt,idingJudgo ',~~ 
Judgo Coda: -2.'7/P 
Sentence Date: -~_;,_£+:i}:L~+L~-<--------
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~ATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) JN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 


COUNTY OP' 
.,STATE 


____ ...;Sc:.P;.:AR __ T.:,:A,;;NB.;.;;..;:UR.;..=.G ____ ~ 
VS. ) lNDICThmNT/CASE#: 2019O54201337A 


=~---------=Dc..:o:.::ug..,1-=a'c..cJ-=am""osaa-;W"-n"''g"'ht._, ___ ) AfW#: 20l&A4210203484 
AKA: _________________ ) Date ofOffcnso: _,9~/l'"'l"c'"-c;0_,_18"-,--_____ _ 
Race: WHIT£! Sex! M Ago: 30 S.C. Codo § _...;lcc6•.;;:;2;;..~·.;..04c;;9ll,;;_ ______ _ -~-) 
DOB: -1989 SS#: """"'--------), CDRCodoH: -.....c.05'-4""9 ________ _ 
Addl'C$s: 136 Midland Dr J, 
City,Stale,zlp: Boilfua ~tings. SC:z93J6-53$3 ), 
DLII: -I!!- ,.._ __ SID#: ,, 
•C0LYcs□ No□ CMVYes□ No-□=-H_.ztn_a_t_Y,_QS--□-N-o-_O, 
In disposi~cn c flho .said indi~tmcnl comos now the Defendant who was 
TO: PO$$. wcal)on durl11A violent crimo (Syr) Rec: Concurrent 


SENTENCE Sff.EET 


0 CONVJCTBD OF or !ZIPLEADS 


in vlol!tlon of § 16-23-0490 of the s,C. Code ot Laws, bearing CDR Code n """0S;:.:4:.:;9 ___ =-==....,.,.. 
!XINON-VIOLllNT □ VIOLENT □ SERIOUS l]MOSTSBRJOUS O Mnndatoi:yGPS(CSC C §l7•2S-4S 


w/m!nor hi o, ~ewd Act) 
Th~ Cht.r&e Is: Jl!I A.slllditled, Q!.c=rlndudcd Oll'<D"', □Defendant Wo\vc, Prc,c~tm<nl o Grand lury. dol'mdant'• iniliu!,) 


OWJ!ho t Negotiations or Reco~d.atioo. O 1'1,egot~led Sent R===~.t~n b)' lllo State, Tha plcm ls· 
AITES 


s 
SCI01370 ~~ thfom. 


, SP SSR H SC Bl!I'# Defendant Neely, Paul K. SC Bar# 
AUOTIIC)' for o.rcndant 


WHllRBFORE, the Defendant ?:°mmir.d 10 the fi(I Statd>eparll!ltnl or Corredions, 0 County Detention Center, 
for a dctennlnato tenn of __ :)__.,.,___ ~mon~or D under the YouthCul Offender Ac! no! to exceed,__ __ years 
and/or lo pny a fino of S · provided that.upon tho IICMce of --.,...,......,.,~- d~montbs/yca,s and/or payment 
of$ • plus costs and LSsessments as applicable•; the 'balonto Is $11Spcnded with probation for ______ _ 
montlu/years ond rubjcct to South Carolina Dopuancnl of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions ofpro>bation, 
which arc Incorporated by rofcronco. 
\BwNCIJRRBNT or O CONSECUTIVE to scnlontc on: 


[j}'l1,c Oafcndanl is lo t,o given eredlt for limo served pursuant to S.C, Codo §24-13-40 10 be calculated BIid applied by SCDOC. 
□Tho Dctcndant is to bo placed on tho Central Registry of Child Abuao and Nogloct pllmlllnt to S,C. Coda §17·2S•IJ5. 
Pursnnl to J 8 U,S.C Seelion 922,lt Is unluwful for• pcr1on eonvlcted or a vloJ.tlon of Section 16-Zs-l0 or 16-25-65 (Domestic 
Vlol•nco) to •hip, transport, possess, or reeclYC a nr•arm OT ammunition, 


SPECIAL CONDITIONS1 
D RESTnUTI0N: ou.rorred OD•t WalYU H,orln~ Oord .. ed PTUP 


Tora~ s _____ plus20%fee: ___ $ ___ _ 


PoymentTcnns: ______________ _ 
0 SetbySCDPPPS ___________ _ 


Reeiplont: ________________ _ 


•Fino: s 
$ 


SIOO $1t,4..0 


_ __ doyslhours Publ!G Service Employment 


Obtain 01!D :J 
AUcnd Vo,;, Rehab. or Job Corp 
Mey $CrYo W/B boglnlng 
Substani:o Abuse Counoaling D 
Random Drug/Alcohol cesting 0 
Fino may bo pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly 
pmts. ors ---- boginning 


§14-1•206{Asso,smcn!J l07.S%) 
§14•1•1ll(A)(l)(Conv. Surc!iat&o) 
§l4•1•21l(A)(2)(DUI Surcbvgo) 
§!6-!S-2995 (DUJ .wcssmcnt) 
§56-1•186 (DUI Breath Test) 
Proviso (Public De£'Prob1tlonJ 
§14-1•212 (Low Bnfore<. l'undlni) 
§l,!.1-113 (Dru11 Co11I1S11<cbvge) 
§'0·21•114(BUJ Brcolll Tai Pee) 
§$6-H!l42(J) (Vehicle Assessment) 
3%to County (if paid m instollmonts) 


SI00 S' 
$12 $ 
S2.S S 
s,oo $ 


$ ---.--:: puidtoPubli,D:~~rFuc•d._J_~$· 
Other. @ C...o~t;t 01w ...:. 


I 


TOTAL 


$2$ ~•.:> ~ 
$150 S ,.,~ 
sso s .., .... ,s• 
$40.'ea S ~t:J "4Appointcd PD or appointed other counsel, 


:;s ~5 ~1::<::::::=.t13• .;, "' Proviso requires ssoo be paid to Clerk 
7! duricg probation ond shall be ~oll~tcd beforo 


_$,..,_/.=~(,,__;zC ___ ,;.,,: any other fees. rf ~. /.,) ..._ 
~ Pmlding1udgo !VJ: ~ 


ClerkofCour!/ Depucy Cl<;lll,:;'-"°"':~7':=;J:::r.OPd:::.... ___ -:;-___ Judge C<>de: ,Z(lt(O i:,, 
CouitReporur: 0pQ\iia)1i Sentence Date: Zf@/)?/ 
SCCA/217 ('04/2018) 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
'I COUNTY 01' SPAR'fANBURO :r 


STATE VS. ) 
=,.,----------=D:..:Oll=gla.,=J"'llll=C•:..W=rizgb::;:t._, <::r.=..,,.._, __ :I 
AKA: · -----------------) Race: WHITE SOJt: M Ago: 30 -~--) 
DOB: -1989 SSI/: 
Ad<k=: 136 Midland Or -------- ji 
City,Stoto,Zip: Boiling Sprjnp sc 2931§-5333 ;, 
DUI: JIIIII■ ___ ..,;SID#: -=------------ 1, 
'CDL Ye10 No□ CMV Yes□ No□ Hnunat Yos□ No□ 


IN THE COIJRTOll GENERAL Sl!SSIONS 


ll-!DlCTMllNT/CASEII: 2019GS420133S 
A/WI/: 20t8A42102034!1 
Dato cCOt'l'onsc: ..,9 .. 1 ... 11..,n.~0"'1"'1....,......,.. ______ _ 
S.C.Codc§ 16-13--0030(A) 
CDR.Codo ~: ----"3S'-"9<i ..... ________ _ 


SENTENCE SHEET 


In disposition oflhc said indictment comes now the Defendant "'110 was O CONVICTED OF or ~PLEADS 
TO: Petit or Simple U!rccnv- $2,000 or loss CEnhoncemcnl per 16·l-S7l (0• IOvt) R.cc: Concurrent 


in violation of § 16-IS--003Q(A) orlho S.C. Codo of.Laws, bcnrlngCDR Code# """"35~9~6----,=--=.,-
IZJNON-VIOl.eNT □ VIOLENT 0SJ!!UOUS QMOSTSERJOUS 0Mnndntory0PS(CSC O §17-25•4~ 


w/minor 1st or Lewd Ac1) 
~ /'J !Ddlclod, QLc,s.r Included Ofl'en,c, ODoC.ndant Waives Proscntmcn Orand Jur.,, === (dcrendont's ,niti31s) 
OWi NegotiatioasorRecommcndation, O Negotiated Sen Recomm elation bythoStftta, 


i,SPBNSl!R~ 
8
scg~~o ~ ~ Nccl)',Paut Js~~~ 


Auornoy for DcfendMt 
WHEREFORE, the Defendant iis._ollllilitcd to the ~ Slato l>ei,~rtme11t of Correclfons, D County DeteuUon Center, 
for a de1cnn!nate ternl of /' U daya/rnonths/@r· 0 under the Youthflll O!fonder Act not to ci1c:ccd .,---years 
and/er lo pay a !IPO oft • provided !bat Upon1hc rcrvic:c of ______ day3'monthsiyear1 and/or payrnont 
of$ • plus costs and asso,smont5 cu applicable•; tho balanc:o ls suspended will! probation fQt ,----,,-:--.,...."".""-,-­
month!/yearl and su'Juecl to S0111h Carolina Department of Probatio11, Parole l!Ild Pardon Service, standard conditio11s ofprcbadon, 
which 11re incorporated by rcfcrenoo. 
@'coNCURR.ENT or O CONSl!CUTIVE to sentence on: 


~cD<ifendllAI ls to be given credit for limo sCJVcd purn,l!lt to S.C, Code §24-U-40 to bo C4lculatcd and applied by SCDOC 


□Tho Defendant is to bo placed on the Central Rcgbt,y of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17•2~·13S. 
Purruantto 18 IJ,S.C Scdlon 922,lt Is gnlawClll for a penon eoovlclcd oh violation oCSoclfo11 lt>-lS-2D or 16-25-65 (Domosrlo 
Violence) to ship, 1ninspor1, possess, or receive a nrcarm or awmunlllon. 


SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
0 RESTITUTION: 0Dofemd 0Dtt Walvo, Hearin: □Ordered PTUP 


Tew: s _____ plU$20¾fee: ___ s ___ _ 
PaymcntTemu: _______________ _ 


0 Set by SCDPPPS 


R:cipient: ________________ _ 


•Fine: 
§ 1+1-206 (/'JlcasmcnlS 107.S %) 
§l◄-1-21 l(A)(l) (Conv.Sun:lwlle) 
§14•1•2l l(A){'l) (DUI Surcbafie) 
§56-S-29~5 (DUI ASsmm<:11) 
§56-1•2!6 (DUI llt<:ath Te,t) 
Provi:io (Public l)eflProbotlon) 
§\~1-212 (I.aw Bnfor<:e. Pundlni) 
§ 14• 1°213 CD~ C:O.ct Surchario) 
§50-2\.114(8Ul Breoth Test Feo) 
§56-S-294l(J) (V<hiclo ,u,cssmcnl) 
3% to count, (If paid In lnstallment5) 


TOTAL 


s 
s 


• 


ClerkcrCourt1D•PUJY~1<.---------
Coo11Rcport<r: ~ 
SCCA/217 (04/2013) 


_ ___ da)')/hoW'I Public Service Employment 


Obt.tinOED 0 
Ancnd Vo,;. Rehab. or Job Corp. 
May serve WIE boglning 
Substance Abuse Counseling 0 
Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0 
Fino may bo pd. In equal, ccnsecu1lve weokly/inonthly 
pmlS. of$ _____ beginning 


S ____ paid to Publle Defender fund 


Other. - ~~t¾u4 s;'j,jt;J. 
D Appoin1cd PD or nppointed other counsel, 


Proviso rcquin:s S500 bo paid to Clerk 
during probation and shall bo «>Ucc!ed before 
any other tees. tfJ:::i _ 


Presidu,g Jud&• ,...,_Kr""'").,,.'--__ -'-____ _ 
JudgeCode: "Z-'1(,,0 ~,,4. 
Sentonco Date: q/fi/ l?l 
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STATE OF SOUTH CA.ROUNA ) IN l'HE COURT OF GENERALSl!SSIONS 
) 


COlJNTYOP Sl'ARTANBlJRO ) 
STATE vs. ) 
--------~Do=ugi,:lllS:.:;lom=•::..s W=rii.:gh=ll~i:=~a!.:14:u., __ ) AKA: _______________ ) 


l\aco: WH.ITB Sex: M Ago: _..:.3.:..0 __ ) 
DOB: l 9S9 SS#: ) 
Address: 136 Midland Dr ) 
Ci1Y,Sta10,Z1p: Boiljng Springs, sc; 29316-533) ) 
DL#: SID#: _______ ) 


*CDLYc,O No□ CMVYcs□ No□ HozmatYco□ No□ 


IND[CTMENT/CASE#: 2019GS420l4Sl 


A/WI/: 201SA4210203487 
Date ofOtrensc: _,9~11,.,1:..:/20:=-l,,,&'---.------
S,C. Codo § 16-0J-107S(Bl(IJ 


CDRCodo#: _ _:::lS:.:.9'~---------


SENTENCESHlmT 


In dlspos!don o!1ho nid lndicanont cc,mcs now tho Do!endant who wm O CONVICTED OF or IZ)PLEADS 
TOJ Carjaclcin~ / Toke ar ottcmpt a vehicle from llCl'llon by force without l!JCot bodily horm (0-201 Roe: Concurrent 


in violation of § l 6-03-1075/B)(I) oflhc S.C. Code ofL&w., bcoring CDR COdc I# ...=2,.,599:.<... ______ _ 
0NON•VlOLEN'I' (lg VIOLSNT □SBRIOUS !X)MOST SER!OllS O Mandatory GPS(CSC 0 § l7-2S-4S 


w/mlnor 111 or Lewd Ml) 
Tho charge LI: ~ As lndil)IC(I. □Lesser hlcludM Offi:nso, :::)Defendant WAivcs Pmcntmont rand Jury. (defcndonl'• h>hlols) 


A~. Y,#dtf, _JSC~JOl~J7~0 _d.Q~~~..../ 


Th~c pl :~ OW)ll1ut Negotiations or ~ommcn&tlon, D Negotiated Sent 


MITH, ~fil(jf SC Bar/I 
\ Attorney tor Dcfcndmt 


n ~y the 7~1".:...., 
sfu~ 
SC Ber/I 


WHERl!FORE, the Dc!<ndant Is commlted t<> the 0g State Department or Corrections, O Couoiy Detention Center, 
for a detenninate tcnn ~- .:__ dayslrnont@s or D under the Youth£ul Offender Act not 10 excced.~ __ years 
and/or 10 pay a lino of S · provided lhlt upon the service of · J O days/n\OPth~d/or pa)"111cnt 
of$ : plus costs and assessments as «ppllcablo•: 1he bdan<>0 is suspended with probation for ---=-'"-----­
mon~ MCI 1ubject to Sou 11, Catolilla Department of Probation, !'arolc aocl Pardon Services stalldard conditions of probation, 
wh!gh ~corporatcd by refcreAcc. 
0"CONCURRENT or O CONSECUTIVE to ,cntcnco on: 


0"n,e Dell:ndanl is lo bo given credit for time served pursuantlo S.C. Code §24•13-40 to be calculated and applied by SCD0C. 
□Tho Dcfcn<Wlf is to be placed OIi the central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code f 17-25-135. 
Punu•nt lo IS U,S.C Section 922,lt Is unl•wM Cora person convicted ota violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Domestic 
Vlolcnco) I<> ship, tnmsl)<lrl, potsen, or receive I Ii rearm or ammunition, 


SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
0 RESTITOTt0N: OD•f•rnd QDer. Wolvts Hmlna QOrderod PTIJP 


Total: s _____ plus20¾feo: ___ s ___ _ 
Pnymcot Terms: _______________ _ 
0 SetbySCDPPPS ___________ _ 


Recipient: _________________ _ 


•Ftne. 
§ l.C.1-206 (J\sswmcnts 107.S %) 
§14•1·21 l(A)(I) (Conv, Sureltnri:c) 
§ l.C.t-21J(A)(l) (DUI Sarchara•) 
§S6-S-299S (DUI Assessment) 
§56-1•236 (DUI Brcnth Te<t) 
P,oviso (Publlo DcDPn>b&tlon) 
§14•1•2l2 (Law Enforce, Pw>dinll) 
§14-1-213 (Dn,1 Court Surcb•ri:•l 
§S0-21•1 !◄ (BUI Btot1tb TOSI Pee) 
§StS-,•2942()) (Vehicle ASSC$Smcnt) 
3% to County (ifpaic! In insC.IJmeoto) 


$ 


$100 $ /h)"" 
s100 s' 
$12 $ 
Sl5 $ 


$SOO SS'l()"J 


~~o }? 
$50 $ 


• 


SCO/ca ...:,:;S ____ _ 


Slf,1f' 


TOTAL 


Clcrlco(Coul1/Dcpu~Cl~-,:;,o.~~::....--------
CourtR<>porter: ~ 
SCCA/217 (04/20 IS) 


_ ___ d1yslhoun Public Servioo Employment 


OblainGED 0 
Ancnd Voe. Rehab. or Job Corp. 
May sem: W/B beglnmg 
Substance Abuso Counsellng 0 
Random Drug/Alco~ol testing ~ 
P'ino may be pd. in equal, consecutive weckly/montlily 
pmu. of$ _____ beginning 


$ paid to Public De~cndcr: f..; :I, 
Other~ illS~f~ __ 


O Appolnti:d PD or appointod otMr cowisc~ 
Proviso rcquiros SSOO bo paid to Clorlc 
during probntlon and shall be co]Lccted before 
any other fees. ~ 


PrcstdlngJudgo Cg ) 
Judge Code: Ill¥ ·Z'7t, 0 • 
SentcncoDnte: <?7f//f 


; 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 


COlJNTY OP SPARTANBURG S 
STATE VS. ), 


Douglas Jam~ Wright ) -------~===:..==---. AKA: ________________ ) 


Race: WHITE Sex: M Ago: 30 J, 
DOB: 1919 SS#; ) 
Addeo»: 136 Midland Dr ) 
Clty,Sla!o,:tlp: BojJjng Spring,,, SC 29316-$331 )1 DI.#: SID#: ________ ) 


•CDL Yes□ No□ CMVYesO No□ Hazrna.iYcsO No□ 
fn dlsposlbOn of the said illdictmoat comes oow tho Dctcndant who was 
TO: l>oss. wca1>0n dwiAA violont crimo (S'\'I') Ree: Concurrent 


IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 


INDICTMENT/CASI!#: 20190S420 I 45 I A 


AIWII: 20l3A4210203486 
Dato of Offense: ..,9:i.11!.!1~12.,,0-"18,_ _______ _ 
S.C. Code§ __:lc.:.6·..::23:..•::.04:..:c9::.0 ______ _ 
CDR Codell: _....;.OS:..4:.;.9 ________ _ 


SENTENCE SHEET 


0 CONVICTED OF or 


in violation of § 16-23-0490 of\b.o S.C. Codo o!Law1, benring CDR Codo fl --"'0S""4,..9 ______ _ 
!lllNON•VlOL!?NT O VIOLENT □SERIOUS O MOSTSBR.IOUS O Mandatory 0PS{CSC O §17•25-45 


w/mlnor 1st or Lowd Act) 
QDofendont Waives Pr=tm<nl 10 0nnd Iul)'•;_---,.,..-,_(:d;..cfondo.nl'• lnhials) 


Ne otiat~d Sen1c J!l cco n by die Stille, 
Tho charge is: IZ] As Indicted. Otwer Included omnso, 
The pie Ions or ~commenda 


s6i~~ 
SC Bari/ 


AITE · SCI01370 
SCBar# ce y, Paul K, 


Allomey Cor Dcll>ndont 
WHEREFORE. tho Dofondlllit rsco1tttttltcd 10 tlle x! St•t• Dopartmenl of Correction,, D County Detcallon Center, 
for I determia~ term or ? d~y,/mon~r □ under the Youthful orcender Ad no! to e,cc,:cd ~--years 
and/or 10 pay a fine of$ • provided that upon tho s..vlee or ______ days/months/yem and/or payment 
oCS • pl~ eoslS and ass=onlS as IJlplieablo•; the balance is suspended with probation for ______ _ 
months/ye<U"S and subject to South Carolina Department of Probati011, Porolo and Pard011 Service., 1111ndard condlti011S of probation, 
whlcjyare lnco1poratod by refcrenee. · 
mt9NCURRBNT or O CO'NSECUTIV!! to sentence on: 


(i;l1hc Dofondtnt Is 10 be given credit for limo aorved pun1uan1 to S.C. Codo f24-13-40 to be calculaled and applied by SC00C. 
O Tho Defendant is to be plllCCd on tho Ccntr.d Rccistty of Child Abuse ond Neglect pwtuanl to S.C. Code § 17-2S• ll S. 
Pursual lo 18 U.S.C Section !>12,lt 11 unlawful ror a person convicted ot a vlobtloa of Section 16-25-20 or 16-lS-6S (Domc•ll• 
Violence) to ship, lraD5port, posses,, er receive a fimn11 or ammunJUon. 


SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
0 RESTITUTION: QD,rorr•d □Def. W11 ... H,.rlns Q0r4erd PTUP 


Total: $ _____ plu1 20¾ fco: 
PaymcntTerms; _______________ _ 


0 Set by SCDPPPS 


Recipient: -~---------------­
•Pinc: 
§14•1·206 (Auesmicn1' 107 s %) 
§ l◄-1-211 (AX I) (Conv, SurmarteJ 
§14•1-JI l(A)(2) (DUI Surcborco) 
§Sl!-S,l99S (DUI A!se,smonl,) 
§S6-l •2!6 (DVI Brcmh Test) 
Proviso (Public Dol7Probatlon) 
§ 14-l·lll (Law J!nfb,cc, Fundlll&) 
§U-1-213 (Dru, Cour\ Surohl\l'go) 
§S0-21-1 l4(Btll lln:ath T..i Fee) 
§l6•S•l!Mi(J) (Velllclc Assessment) 
3% 10 C<nm<y (lfpald In lnstollments) 


TOTAL 


s 
$100 $ ,m.p 
$JOO S' 
$12 $ 
SlS $ 
$$00 S 
W S,$'..:i> 
$150 $ 
sso s 
540/c• -'s.----~---


s1R 


Clcrl< o(Cour1/Depu~CI•~--· J----------
CouitRcpcrter: ~114Jl-..,Mu~.,...j ___________ _ 


SCCA/217 (1)41201!) 


____ da)'flllou!>' Publio Service EmpJoyinent 


ObtainGED 0 
Attend Voe, Rehab. or /ob Corp. 
May llerVO W/B begining 
Substance Abuso Counseling ;J 
Random DruJ/ Alcohol testing ::J 
Fine may be pd. in equal, cODSccutivo weekly/monthly 
pmts. of$ ____ beginning 


s paid :'..:'.f ~D:l°r l'und , 
Olh•r;~:t ~?il! 
D Appointed PD or oppoinled other counsel, 


Proviso requires $SOD bo paid 10 Clerk 
durillll probation and shQll bo collected before 
ony other foe•. rf ~ I/ _ 


Pmlding ludge /) ,J',_), E-:.cJ< "' 
JudgoCodc: --Z.'7(.,Q~ ~ 
Senwnco Date: qz_{, 'Z 
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' STATE OF SOUTR CAROLINA 


COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG 
STATE VS. 


Douglas James Wright • .,; ., • =~-------...:C:=-===.!:,.!;~-=-==--) AKA: 


) 
.) 
) 
) 


Race: WHITR Sex: M Age: JO -....::..:'----) 
DOB: ·l 939 SS/1: 
Address: 136 Midland Dr ~ 
Cily,Stato,Zip: BoJlint Spring.,. SC 29316-5333 ) 
DU: SID#: --=-----,--c ) 
•CDL Yes□ No□ CMV Ye- □ No□ H11Z111al Ye,C• No□ 
In disposition of lhe snld ind1ctmenl come, now the Defendant who wu 
TO: Assault and Batlcrv• lst do)l,Teo (O• lOvr) Roe: Concurrent 


IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 


INDICTMBNTICASEII: 20!9GS42014l2 


A/W#: 20l8A42!020343S 
Pate of Oifen,e: ~9~/l~le,t).s:,0"'18.._ _______ _ 
s.c. Codo § __;1.:.6-..::.0;..3·..::.002=9 _______ _ 
CDRCodc #: _ _;..34;..cl.:.O ________ _ 


SENTENCE SHEET 


::::J CONVICTED Of' or (lgPLEADS 


lnviolalionof § 16-03-0600(CX1) ~ oftheS.C. Code of Law,, bearingCDRCQdo# .....,,;;34'-'l"'-2 ____ _ 
ll!JNON-VIOLENT □ VIOLENT :]SERIOUS □ MOST SERIOUS O MandatoryGPS(CSC O §\7-25-4S 


w/ or 1st or Lewd Act) 
Thodlargc i,, 
Tocplc 
ATIE 


O As lndi<ted, ~Lesser lne!udcd Otrcn,c, ODefcnd1nt Waives Prcscntmcntto r d Ju,y. 


O · o~ Ne tlation, or Reco-~~ted Sentcn (;! 


(defondnnt's lnnlals) 
1 n by tho St•te. 


SCJOJJ70 'JH'.,_~....,_....-=,~,::-,,...e;.,....c..."'---- ff--Fc:.: 
TH, SPBNSBR SC Ber# Dc!cndl!ll Nccl)I, Poul K, 


.~ 
SC Bari/ 


Anomcy for Dcfcn4'nt 
WttllREFORE, lho Defendant is eomrnited to the llQ State Deportment of Corrections, 0 County Detention Center, 
fora detonninato tc:nn of / 0 dll)'s/month,.G or D under the Youthful OITondor Act not to c~cced ___ year• 
and/or to pay a tine ofS · provided th'linlix,n the 1ervice of ______ days/months/years and/or pll)llllcnt 
of$ • plu, ~t, andu.sessmettll 115 applicable•; lh• bahmco ls suspended with probation for ----~--­
month!l)'em and subject to South Carolln&l)ep:utmeot of Probation, Puol• and Pardon Services s!111ldm:<! conditions of probanon, 
wbisJ, an, ineorparotod by reference. 
ef 50NCURREl-lT or O CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: 


1i"J The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursulllll to S,C. Codo §24-13-40 to bo calculated and appUcd by SCDOC. 
OTho Defendant is to be placed on the Contra! Registry of Child Abuso and Neglect pursuant to S.C. C<ide §17-25-135. 
Punuant to 18 U.S.C Section 9ll,lt 11 unbwful for a penon convicted ofa violation of Section 16-lS-lO or l&•lS-6S (Donm11c 
Violence) to ship, trnnsport, possess, or ricclve a fin:arm or ammunition, 


SPECJAL CONDffiONS: 
D .RESTrfOTI0N: :]oererrcd ODct Waive, Hcarlnc Qordcrcd PTUP 


Total: $ _____ plus20%foe: ___ $ 


PaymcntTernu: ______________ _ 


0 Set by SCDPPPS 


Roeipiont: _________________ _ 


*Fino: 
§14-1-206 (A.!ses,irn:n!> 107~%) 
§!4-1-2ll(A)(1) (Conv. Sordtaqie) 
§14-l-21 l(A)(2) (DUT Son;horge) 
§SG-5-2995 (DUl As,...,,.eot) 
§56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) 
Proviso (Public D.t1P10batl0n) 
§1.(.1-211 (Low Enforce. funding) 
§14•1•2l3 (DrusCourt Sur•hlJ'iO) 
§S0.21-114(BU! Breath Tc,t Pco) 
§S6-S-2942(J) (Vchlcl• A,scssmcnt) 
3% to Conni)' (if paid in installmonts) 


TOTAL 


$ 


s 


ClctkofCourt/0.P'\t}'c:~:l'T"r, =--'---------
CouttRepone,: ~ 
SCCNll7 (04/2018) 


' 


____ days/hours Public Service Employineut 


Ob1,inOED C 
Attend Voe. Rehab, or 1ob Corp, 
May servo W/f!. bcg!aing 
Substance Aboso C01111,ellng D 
Rmldom Drug/Alcohol testing 0 
fine mny bo pd. in equal, consecutive wccklyimonlhly 
pmts. of$ _____ beginning 


$ -----,,.--,,,-
Oth~ tJ.0---):..&~~~~ l ... 


O AppoiD!cd PD or appointed olher counsel, 
Proviso requires $500 bo paid to Clork 


~~~o=on on~d sbal~l be coved b~fore 


Presiding Judge ~;~ 
Judgo Code: ,.,'2-:;..0i..olc,ee:.,,Qc.,~....-1.--_,_-~------­
Senunec Date. 


132





		Blank Page








